ALLEY OF DISCOVE, S

MEETING OF THE SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

WEDNESDAY, January 14, 2015 - 6:00 P.M.
MEETING OF THE
SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
GRANT FUNDING COMMITTEE
SAN MARCOS ROOM

1 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE
SAN MARCOS, CA 92069

Cell Phones: As a courtesy to others, please silence your cell phone or pager during the meeting and engage in
conversations outside the meeting room.

Americans with Disabilities Act: If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the
Board Secretary at (760) 744-1050, ext. 3121. Notification 48 hours in advance will enable the City to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Assisted listening devices are available for the
hearing impaired. Please see the Board Secretary if you wish to use this device.

Public Comment: If you wish to address the Board on any agenda item, please complete a “Request to Speak”
form. Be sure to indicate which item number you wish to address. Comments are limited to FIVE minutes.

The Oral Communication segment of the agenda is for the purpose of allowing the public to address the Board on
any matter NOT listed on the agenda. The Board is prohibited by state law from taking action on items NOT listed
on the Agenda. However, they may refer the matter to staff for'a future report and recommendation. [fyou wish
to speak under “Oral Communications,” please complete a “Request to Speak” form as noted above.

Agendas: Agenda packets are available for public inspection 72 hours prior to scheduled meetings at the
Administration Department located on the second floor ot City Hall, 1 Civic Center Drive, San Marcos, during
normal business hours.

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

OLD BUSINESS

1. GRANT AWARD HISTORY
Recommendation: NOTE & FILE

NEW BUSINESS

2. REGULAR GRANT APPLICATION PROPOSALS Consider four (4) Regular Grant proposals by
non-profit organizations requesting funds from the Foundation. Recommend Funding to
the SMCF Board.
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(A) INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES — Request for funding in the amount of

$10,000 for their Senior Services Program to provide aid and support to vulnerable
and low income senior citizens in the North County San Diego Community.
Recommendation: CONSIDER/RECOMMEND

(B) JUST IN TIME FOR FOSTER YOUTH - Request for funding in the amount of

$9,600.00 to provide transitioning foster youth with the necessary computers,
technology tools, school and dorm supplies to support their college success.
Recommendation: CONSIDER/RECOMMEND

(C) PHOENIX FOODS USA — Request for funding in the amount of $7,610 to purchase

cosmetically imperfect food from grocery stores, wholesalers, and farmers, and
transform it into meals and products in order to provide nutritious meals for
seniors in San Marcos and food bank clients throughout North San Diego County.
Recommendation: CONSIDER/RECOMMEND

(D) SOLUTIONS FOR CHANGE, INC. — Request for funding in the amount of $10,000 to

support their Solutions Case Management program. The grant will fund the
supportive services provided by their corps of coaches who provide constant
mentoring to address the specific issues and needs of the homeless.
Recommendation: CONSIDER/RECOMMEND

3. WILDLIFE FUND GRANT APPLICATION PROPOSAL Consider one (1) Wildlife Fund Grant

proposal by a non-profit organization requesting funds from the Foundation. Recommend
Funding to the SMCF Board.

(A) NURTURED BY NATURE - Request for funding in the amount of $5,000 to support

their wildlife accessibility project, including the installation of boardwalks and the
purchase of a people-moving off-road cart to transport visitors with mobility
impairments to enclosures throughout the Nurtured by Nature facilities.
Recommendation: CONSIDER/RECOMMEND

4. RECONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF REQUEST FROM SAN MARCOS

HISTORICAL SOCIETY The San Marcos Historical Society has submitted a request for

approval of the expenditure of funds for the purchase of items outside the original scope
of the mini-grant approved on May 22, 2014 for various technology updates.
Recommendation: RECONSIDER/APPROVE

CONSENT CALENDAR

5. WAIVER OF TEXT This item is to waive the reading of the text of all Resolutions and

Policies adopted at this meeting. Resolutions and Polices shall be adopted by title.
Recommendation: WAIVE
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6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES SMCF Grant Funding Committee Meeting, November 12, 2014.
Recommendation: CONSIDER/APPROVE

7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS Speakers are limited to five minutes. Please complete a
“Request to Speak” form and place in basket provided. According to Board policy, FIFTEEN
minutes has been established during this portion of the Agenda to allow citizens to speak
on any matter NOT listed. The Board is prohibited by state law from taking action on items
NOT listed on the Agenda. However, they may refer the matter for a future report and
recommendation.

ITEMS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER

8. NEXT MEETING DATE
The next meeting of the Grant Funding Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, February
11, 2015. The next meeting of the SMCF Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday,
February 17, 2015.

9. MISCELLANEOUS

10. ADJOURNMENT

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) ss.
CITY OF SAN MARCOS )

I, Wendy Kaserman, Secretary of the San Marcos Community Foundation Grant Funding Committee, hereby certify that | caused the
posting of this agenda in the glass display case at the north entrance of City Hall on Friday, January 9, 2015, at 5:00 pm.

T o~

Wendy Kaserman, Secretary - SMCF




SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Grants Awarded FY 2014-2015 (As of 12/17/2014)

Organization

Request

[rvee]

Award

Mtg. Date | Rptg. Date |

Report Received

Project Summary

Summer Quarter 2014

Alzheimer's Association of SD/Imperial

$1,500.00

M

$1,500.00

8/13/2014

2/13/2015

To provide informational packets about Alzheimer's and
resources available to families in need. Funding would provide
packets to approximately 300 San Marcos families.

Foundation for Senior Well Being

$1,500.00

M

$1,200.00

8/13/2014

2/13/2015

To assist with the organization's efforts to compile information
about organizations provide service to seniors in North County
and become the clearing house directing seniors to resources
available. Will serve the senior population of San Marcos,
estimated to be approximately 8,527 San Marcos residents.

The Boys & Girls Club of San Marcos

$10,000.00

$4,153.00

8/19/2014

2/19/2015

Reporting documentation
received 1/6/2015

To help expand The Victory Project (formerly the Academic
Success Program), an after-school program that provides
extra/remedial support for youth in grades 2nd — 5th who have
scored below basic or far below basic in math and reading on
standardized testing. Serves 120 San Marcos residents.

North County Health Services

$4,315.00

$4,315.00

8/19/2014

2/19/2015

To purchase a new auditory screening unit for the
organization’s Project All Ready (PAR) program. Through this
program the organization provides free hearing and vision
screenings to children 18 months old to 5 years old at
preschools, day cares, and Head Starts. Estimated to serve 400
San Marcos residents.

Partnerships with Industry

$10,000.00

$2,000.00

8/19/2014

2/19/2015

To provide vocation training, assessment, placement and
ongoing support to adults living with disabilities in San Marcos
to help them thrive in the work environment. Serves 10 San
Marcos residents.

The Angel's Depot

$5,000.00

$500.00

8/19/2014

2/19/2015

To help support the Senior Emergency Meal Box Program
which provides a specifically formulated, nutritious
nonperishable box meal to age and income qualified seniors.
Funding will provide 60 boxed meals every month to seniors
living in poverty in San Marcos.

Casa de Amparo

$5,000.00

$3,000.00

8/19/2014

2/19/2015

To assist with the Residential Services Program, specifically
costs associated with medical assessments and coordination,
transportation to medical appointments, education and
tutoring, job readiness, nutrition education and recreational
and therapeutic activities. Program will serve 60 San Marcos
residents, age prenatal to 21 years old.

Total Grants Awarded Summer Quarter

$16,668.00

Fall Quarter 2014

Kiwanis Club of San Marcos Foundation

$1,500.00

M

$1,500.00

9/10/2014

3/10/2015

To provide partnership support for the San Marcos Holiday
Parade.

Positive Action Community Theatre (PACT)

$1,500.00

M

$1,500.00

9/10/2014

3/10/2015

To fund theatre/life skills workshops for children with autism
at the Country School in San Marcos.
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To assist with the organization’s Equipment Update Project
REINS(Riding Emphasizing Indiv Needs&Strengths) Reportind Documentation which will allow REINS to purchase equipment for their riding
$1,000.00{M $1,000.00 10/8/2014 4/8/2015|received 12/15/2014 program
To purchase science materials to fulfill student requirements
Bayshore Preparatory Charter School $9,580.22R $4,500.00 11/18/2014| 5/18/2015 for hands-on science learning.
Meals-on-Wheels Greater San Diego Inc. To help subsidize the cost of rent at its North County Service
$8,000.00|R $2,000.00] 11/18/2014 5/18/2015 Center located at 930 Boardwalk #C, San Marcos, CA 92078
) . To assist with the costs of providing transportation to music
San Marcos High School Music Boosters $10,000.00|R $1,000.00 11/18/2014 5/18/2015 students.
To assist with the costs of the Lung Cancer Screening Program,
e . . which will assess and refer 25 high rish individuals who reside
Tri-City Hospital Foundation in San Marcos to screening with low-dose computed
$6,250.00|R $4,500.00) 12/16/2014 6/16/2015 tomography (LDCT).
Total Grants Awarded Fall Quarter $16,000.00
TOTAL GRANTS AWARDED FY 2014-2015 $32,668.00
Funds Available for Distribution Fiscal Year 2014-2015
Assets available on 6/30/2014 of 51,300,541.17 $1,300,541
San Marcos Now and Forever Campaign for Current Grantmaking for FY2014-2015 S0
Maximum Grant Making at 4% of Assets Available Combined with Now and Forever Funds $53,667
Maximum Grant Making at 5% of Assets Available Combined with Now and Forever Funds $66,672
Funds Available Per Quarter for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 4% $13,417
5% $16,668
Total Funds Remaining for FY 2014 -2015 Distribution
4% $20,998.65
5% $34,004.06
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

Winter Quarter 2015- Funding Recommendation Worksheet (Regular Grants)

Asset Balance on 6/30/2014: 51,300,541.17

San Marcos- Now and Forever Funds for Current Grantmaking FY 2014-2015: 51,645

Available for Distribution for FY14-15: 553,667 - 566,672
Total FY14-15 Distributions Year to Date= 532,668

Total Remaining Funds for FY if Awarding Grants at 4% of Assets Available=520,998.65
Total Remaining Funds for FY if Awarding Grants at 5% of Assets Available=534,004.06

Target distribution for each quarter to evenly distribute funds across all quarters:

Awarding Grants at 4% of Assets Available=513,417
Awarding Grants at 5% of Assets Available=516,668

Funds Remaining for the Winter Quarter at 4% Level=513,417
Funds Remaining for the Winter Quarter at 5% Level= 516,668

Applicant

Grant Type Summary of Request Requested

GFC Recommended
Funding

INTERFAITH
COMMUNITY SERVICES

Regular To provide funding towards the $10,000
organization’s Senior Services
Program to provide aid and
support to vulnerable and low
income senior citizens in the
North County San Diego
Community. Serves 150 San
Marcos residents.

JUST IN TIME FOR
FOSTER YOUTH

Regular To provide transitioning $9,600
foster youth with the
necessary computers,
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technology tools, school and
dorm supplies to support

their college success. Serves
15-20 San Marcos residents.

PHOENIX FOODS USA

Regular

To purchase cosmetically
imperfect food from grocery
stores, wholesalers, and
farmers, and transform it into
meals and products in order
to provide nutritious meals
for seniors in San Marcos and
food bank clients throughout
North San Diego County.
Serves 200-700 San Marcos
residents.

$7,610

SOLUTIONS FOR
CHANGE, INC

Regular

To support their Solutions
Case Management program.
The grant will fund the
supportive services provided
by their corps of coaches who
provide constant mentoring
to address the specific issues
and needs of the homeless.
Serves 24 San Marcos
residents.

10,000

Total Grants Requested:
$37,210
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Winter Quarter 2015- Funding Recommendation Worksheet (Wildlife Fund Grant Application)

Funds Available for Grantmaking: 55,407.49

Applicant

Grant Type

Summary of Request

Requested

GFC Recommended
Funding

NURTURED BY NATURE

Regular

To support their wildlife
accessibility project, including
the installation of boardwalks
and the purchase of a people-
moving off-road cart to
transport visitors with
mobility impairments to
enclosures throughout the
Nurtured by Nature facilities.
Serves 300 San Marcos
residents annually.

$10,000
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Budget Worksheet

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project:

Personnel expenses: client advocate, minor home repair coordinator;

percentage of program manager, program director & accounting staff $ 105.491

Program services: minor home repair materials, rental assistance,

other emergency assistance for seniors in crisis $ 28.500

Occupancy expenses: rent for leased office space. repairs & maintenance

for owned office space, utilities $ 5628
Professional fees & insurance: audit expense, technology support $ 1,260
Other expenses: Office supplies, staff & volunteer mileage, telephones $ 10,609

copier, software

$

$

$

$
Total budget for this PROJECT: $_151.488
Grant Request Amount: $_10.000

(Mini-granis not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not fo exceed $10,000.)
The $10,000 requested will support personnel expenses associated with operating ICS’s senior
emergency fund, minor home repairs, and case managed social services which are not fully

covered by current foundation or government grant sources.

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? Yes

Please list any other funding sources for this project.

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).

$_10.000 Foundation for Senior Well Being__(approximate grant amount) ** P
$ 36910 Rancho Santa Fe Foundation ** C
$ 55.000 County Aging & Independence Services ** C
$ 14,633 City of Vista (CDBG) ** C
$_5.000 Escondido Senior Enterprise ** C
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g’ IRS Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

005682

P.0. Box 2508; Room 4010 In reply refer to: &GO77550286
Cincinnati OQH 465201 June 03, 2013 LTR 4168C 0
25-3837714 §000G0 00
00032869
BODC: TE

INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES INC
550 W WASHINGTON AVENUE
ESCONDIDO CA 832025-1643

Emplover Identification Number: 95-3837714
Person to Contact: Vaida Singleton
Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour Mar. 08, 2013, request for information
regarding vour tax-exempt status.

Our records indicate that yvou were recognized as exempt under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determlnatlon
letter issued in February 1984.

Our records also indicate that vou are not a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because vou are described in
section(s) 50%9(a)(l) and 170Cb) (1) CAd(vi),

Donors may deduct contributions to vou as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests;, legacies; devises,; transfers,; or gifts to vou or
for vour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes

if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 20565, 2106; and
2522 of the Code.

Please refer to our website www.iﬁs.gov/eo for information regarding
filing requirements. Specifically; section 6033(j) of the Code
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three
consecutive vears results in revocation of tax-exempt . status as of
the filing due date of the third return for organizations requ1red to
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax-exempt

status was revoked under section 6033(j) of the Code on our website
beginning in early 2011.
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6077550286
June 03, 2013 LTR 4168C 0
95-3837714 000000 OO
00032870

INTERFAfTH.CDMMUNITY SERVICES INC
550 W WASHINGTON AVENUE
ESCONDIDD CA 92025-1643

If vou have any guestions,; please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely vours,

Cindy Thomas
Manager; EO0O Determinations
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD

0O BOX 942857
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540

Entity Status Letter
Date:  11/13/2013
ESL ID: 6041986171

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter.

Entity ID: 1120020

Entity Name: INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

1. The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.
2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

3. The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701d.

X X

4. We do not have current information about the entity.

The above information does not necessarily reflect:
e The entity’s status with any other agency of the State of California, or other government agency.
e If the entity’s powers, rights, and privileges were suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or the entity
did business in California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business in California:
o The status or voidability of any contracts made in California by the entity at a time when the entity was
suspended or forfeited (R&TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5, 23305a, 23305.1).
o For entities revived under R&TC Section 23305b, any time limitations on the revivor or limitation of the
functions that can be performed by the entity.

Internet and Telephone Assistance

Website: ftb.ca.gov
Telephone: 800.852.5711 from within the United States
916.845.6500 from outside the United States
TTY/TDD: 800.822.6268 for persons with hearing or speech impairments

FTB 4263A WEB (NEW 02-2012)
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Interfaith Community Services Board of Directors
Updated October, 2014

Bill Baker (Eizabeth). et 760-304-4934 (h)

863 La Tierra Drive, San Marcos, CA92078.....ccoomemeeeeeerraneraeaennn. baker9800@twc.com

Laurie Burt (Kelly) ..ot 858-485-1850 (h)

14385 Ciera Ct., POWaY, CA 92064.........oveceeereereerreerrreereeeressesesnns 858-945-2552 (c)
lburtl@cox.net

Rabbi David Castiglione (Adrienne) .......c.covvvvevveeeeieisiececeeenn 858-451-1200 (o)

15905 Pomerado Road, Poway, CA 92064 ...........coveeeereerrecerrnnne. rabbic@adatshalom.com

CHair Christine Carrick (Joseph) coeovieiiiice e, 760-744-0793 (h)

1710 Via Allondra, San Marcos, CAS2078 ..o eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 760-727-0644 (o)
760-604-0644 (c)
chris@youngdale.com

Rev. Meg Decker ... 760-500-0495 (c)

845 Chestnut Street, Escondido, CA 92025 ..oooevoeeercrieeeereceererenenn 760-743-1629 (o)
revmegd @gmail.com

David Dollins (Linda).....cocevveeiieiiiecrecrec e 760-743-8297 (h)

644 Hibiscus Glen, Escondido, CA92025.......ccveveecvicerieieecieceren. ddollins42 @yahoo.com

Gene Evenskaas (JOYC) ..ot 760-274-6835 (h)

2276 Lagoon View Drive, Cardiff, CA 92007 ......ccovcrveccrveeininirenn, 925-788-6314 (c)

evenskaas@hotmail.com

Michael Friedrichs (Lynne-Marie) ...ccoovvioviciinieeeceeeee e, 760-747-3200 (o)
970 Canterbury Place, Escondifdo, CA 92025.....cccevvvevivcveeniecnenne mfriedrichs@whiteandbright.com
Vice Crair Silas Harrington (Shania) e 760-749-0923 (h)
345 West 9th Ave, Ste. 102, Escondido, CA92025........cccceueeen.... 760-291-8511 (o)

615-985-8072 (c)
silasharrington@sihlaw.com

JEFFJONES oo s 858-722-8790 (h)
UNION BANK.c..ciiiiiiiiitiinrreierneeie et r et ee e s ce s srnssaessbesaeeea 858-722-8790 (c)
669 South Rancho Santa Fe Rd., San Marcos, CA 92078................ jeffery.jones@unionbank.com
George Liggins (Mary Kay) ..o 858-451-1760 (h)
10587 Matinal Circle, San Diego, CA92127....ccoccevevieveeiinereeee. 619-701-5024 (c)

hmdocliggins@aol.com

Jesse Longacre (Charfene) ... 760-839-2205 (h)

2346 Sleepy Hill Lane, Escondido, CA 92026 ....ccceevrvvieenreeveerenn, longacrej@sbcglobal.net

TREASURER Gary LUOTO (GWEN...ccceiiceiece e e 760-479-9723 (h)

2247 Lagoon View Drive, Cardiff, CA 92007 .......ccoceeevvvreerieecnreee. 858-204-2124 (c)
garyluoto@gmail.com
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Interfaith Community Services Board of Directors

Updated October, 2014

Manny Marfinez (LiS8) c.oeeieieiiie e 760-741-7706 (h)

325 W. 3rd Avenue #101, Escondido, CA 92025 ....vveveeveveerenen, 760-743-5822 x 2 (o)
manmart@junoc.com

Mike Meziere (Sheila) ..o 760-739-1801 (h)

2518 Royal View Road, Escondido, CA 92027 .....coevcevveeecievnarnnn. 760-746-3273 (0)
760-802-0083 (c)
mikem@meziere.com

Paul POHEO (Helen) ..ottt 760-758-8086 (h)

30137 Miller Road, Valley Center, CA92082-5951 .....cccoovveernene 760-595-9900, x31 (o)
760-497-5354 (c)
pmp@politoeppich.com

Jinda Schatz (Richard)....cooooice e 858-523-1685 (h)

4551 Rancho Del Mar Trail, San Diego, CA92130....cccoevveecrenn. 619-871-7897 (c)
Jindasinghs@gmail.com

Tim Sharon (Carol) ..ot 760-744-5281 (h)

2479 Rock View Glen, Escondido, CA 92026 ...coveeeeeeeeoeeeeeereeennn, timcarolsharon@cox.net

Secretary Stephen Smith (LOra)......ccooeicveeeieereirecceee e 858-530-2517 (h)

10264 Meadowview Dr., San Diego, CA 92131 ....cooveveeverrenennee 619-699-4904 (o)
619-838-6835 (c)
ssmith@Ibbslaw.com

JEFE VISTICA (LIY) cvere ettt e s 760-517-6804 (c)

One BetterWorld Circle, Suite 303, Temecula, CA 92590.............. 760.517.6804 (o)
jeff@gradneyvistica.com

Chris Weigel-Schwan (Paul SChwan) .......ooovveeiov i 858-676-3904 (h)

17916 Cielo Court, Poway, CA 92064-1022 .....veevoveveeerereerercenanns 619-417-0541 (c)

cwschwan@cox.net
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o 990

** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

benefit trust or private foundation)

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a}{1) of the internal Revenue Code {except black lung

OMB No, 1645- 0047

2012

Department of ihe Treasury o . - ) . Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service B The organization may have to use a copy of this return o satisfy state reporting requirements. inspection
A For the 2012 calendar year, or tax year beginning  AUG 1, 2012 andending JUN 30, 2013
8 S,S‘Sﬁi‘a‘é o C Name of organization D Employer identification number
e’ | INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
e Doing Business As 95-3837714
ot Number and street {or P.0. box f mail is not deliversd to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
Termin- 550 W WASHINGTON AVE B 760-489-6380
el City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 3 Gross receipts § 13,098,183,
[Jepte=- | ESCONDIDO, CA 92025 Hia} Is this a group retum
e Name and address of principal officer: RICHARD BATT for affiliates? [Ives [(XIno
SAME AS C ABOVE H{b} Are all affiliates included?_Ives [_INo

| Taxexempt status: LEJ 504(cH3) L) 504e) {

Y (nsertno.) | J 4947(a)(Tyor L] 527

J Website: p» WHWW . INLERFALTHSERVICES . ORG

Hic) Group exem

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)

K_Form of organization: LXJ Corporation || Trust U Association || Other B

| 1. Year of formation; 187

gtxm number B
1 M State of legal domiclle; CA

[Part1] Summary

@ | 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: SOCIAL SERVICES T0 ADDRESS THE
% NEEDS OF LOW-INCOME, HOMELESS, AND UNDERSERVED POPULATIONS.
g 2 Checkthisbox B> L ]ifthe organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
31 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, lineta) 3 17
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the govemning body (Part Vi, linetb) . . . . .. ... 4 17
# 1 5 Total number of individuals smployed in calendar year 2012 (Part V,line2a) . ... ... ... ... 18 217
:‘E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . 3] 2500
E 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIl column (), e 12 Ta 0.
» Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 00T, BN 34 7o 0.
Prim“ Year Current Year
g| @ Contributions and grants (Part VIIL fine 1h) .. ... 3,514,337, 7,123,193,
£ |9 Programservice revenue (Part Vil fine2g) ... 5,341,662.. 5,330,375,
E 10 Investment income (Part VIll, colurmn (A), lines 3, 4, and7gy 92,537, 330,934,
11 Other revenue (Part VIiL, column (4), fines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and 11e} 0. <28,229.>
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 {must equal Part VIl column (A}, line 12) 8 ) 948 ¢ 536. 12 . 156,273,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), fines 19) 0. 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A}, ined) 0. 0.
w1 18 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part 1X, cclumn (A), lines 510) . 4,819,696, 5,260,043,
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), fneitey 0. 0.
2| b Total tundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), ine 25) B 620,049.
1147 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 112-11d, 11624¢) 4,222,289, 4,007,461,
18 Total expenses. Add lines 1317 (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine28) 9,041,985, 9,267,504,
— 18 Fevenue less expenses. Subtractine 18 fromine 12 <93 I 449 .> 3 : 488 7 769,
‘2% Beglaning of Current Year End of Year
25| 20 Totalassets(PartX,lne16) 17,455,152.] 21,305,813,
5| 21 Totalliabiities (Part X, ine28) 3,002,387.] 3,154,243,
25| 20 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 fromline20 oo 14,452,765, 18,151,570,
["P_ért il | Signature Bloc

Under penaities of perjury, { declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, corfect, and comp )etg Declaration of preparer {other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge,

} C i PARE | & & —jef
Sign Tate
Here 5 BURKE, CFO
Type Or print narme ang wie
Print/Type preparer‘s name Pregarer s 8 namre Dalg Chack Ll PTIN

Preparer | Firnvs name g CBIZ MHM, LLC Frm'sENg 01-0826173
Use Only | Firm's address p, 10616 SCRIPPS SUMMIT COUHT STE 100

SAN DIEGO, Ca 92131 Phoneno. 858-795~-2000
May the IRS discuss this return with the oreparer shown above? (seeinstructions] L_,;g_‘i Yes | INo
232001 12-10-12  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 980 (2012)
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tatement of Program Service Accomplishmenis

Check If Schedule O contains a response 1o any question in this Part il

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:

TO IMPLEMENT PROGRAMS FOR BASIC NEEDS, SOCIAL SERVICES, AND PERSONAL
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, WHICH WILL EMPOWER THE DISADVENTAGED IN OUR
COMMUNITY. SHARE MEMBER CONCERNS WITH ISSUES AND DEAL WITH PROBLEMS,
WHICH AFFECT THE RELIGIOUS COMMUNITY WHEN BY COMMON CONSENT, THE

2  Did the organization underiake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0 990-622 .. [ ves (XIno
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedu!e C.

3  Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? EYes @ No
if “Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0.

4  Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.

Section 501{c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

43 (Code: } (Expenses $ 1 v 241 ’ 114, including grants of § } (Revenus s 753 ; 406.
SHELTERS AND HOMES - INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC (ICS) PROVIDES
SOBERING AND REHABILITATION PROGRAMS AND HOUSING, PROVIDES EMERGENCY
HOUSING AND CARE FOR THE MENTALLY ILL HOMELESS WOMEN AND MEN. THRGE

PROGRAMS INCLUDE CASE MANAGEMENT, SCREENING, AND REFERRALS FOR OTHER

PROGRAMS AND SERVICES.

Form 990 (2012) INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. 95-3837714 page2
] Part ﬂ§ f =3

4b  (Code: } (Expenses § 1, 68 6 606 . including grants of $ } (Revenue's 24 0 524. )
SOCIAL SERVICES - ICS PROVIDES LOW INCOME AND UNEMPLOYED INDIVIDUALS
AND FAMILIES EMERGENCY FOOD, BASIC EMPLOYMENT SERVICES, FRBE TAX
PREPARATION, RENTAL ASSISTANCE, UTILITIES ASSISTANCE AND REFERALS FOR
OTHER SERVICES. ICS ALSO SUPPLIES DAILY BREBRFAST AND LUNCH, AND BASIC
SERVICES, SUCH AS SHOWERING, LAUNDRY FACILITIES AND MAIL RECEI?T FOR
THE HOMELESS.

4e (Code } (Expenses $ 2 7 6 2 5 5 6 including grants of § (Hevenue $ 2 6 9 4 8 3 4
VETERANS' SERVICES - I§§ PROVIDES VETERANS WITH THE RESOURCES NECESSARY
TO REGAIN SELF-SUFFICIENCY THROUGH TEMPORARY HOUSING, J0OB SEARCH, JOB
TRAINING, COUNSELING, AND HELP APPLYING FOR FEDBRAIL, BENEFITS, SUCH AS
SOCIAL SECURITY AND VETERANS ADMINISTRATION BENEFITS. ICS ALSO PROVIDES
RECUPERATIVE CARE SERVICES FOR RECENTLY RELEASED HOSPITALIZED

VETERANS .

4d  Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

{Exponses § 2,313,730 wcuanggmisors } {Roveous 1,641,611,
4e Total program service expenses | 8 ; 004 ¢ 006,
Form 9980 (2012)

232002

12-10-12

2
of
11500502 144583 59146 2012.05080 INTERFAITH COMMUNTHY  dBRITESELI%,
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Audit Committee
interfaith Community Services, Inc.
Escondido, CA

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. (the
“Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial pesition as of June 30, 2013, and the related statement
of activities, and cash flows for the eleven month period then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolter General of
the United States.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statemenits.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of {nterfaith Community Services, Inc. as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the eleven month period then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Supplemental Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on, as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other recards used to
prepare the financial statements. The infarmation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whale.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 2013 an
our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal contral over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of the Organization
taken as a whole. The accompanying statement of functional expenses on page 7, report of actual operating
costs (Farm 180) on page 28, actual cash flow analysis (Form 181) on page 29, and annual report reserve
balances and supplemental information (Form 182) on page 30 are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and recanciling
such information directly to underlying accounting and other recards used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinicn, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

%2;,,,, TR Taopee A

December 18, 2013
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2013

ASSETS

Cash
Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Investments

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Capital lease
Notes payable

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted:
Undesignated
Board designated long-term

Temporarily restricted
Parmanently restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 171,308
865,945

66,563

7,300,008

12,901,991

$ 21,305,815

$ 179,742
469,347

369,563

87,487

2,048,103

3,154,242

10,712,055
1,874,998
12,587,053
200,818
5,363,702

18,151,573

$ 21,305,815
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Statement of Activities
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Temporarly  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Revenue and Support:
Federal contract revenue $ 4,604,326 § - % - % 4,604,326
Other contract revenue 281,610 - - 281,610
Contributions 1,822,489 51,093 4,287,376 6,160,958
In-kind donations 1,368,056 - - 1,368,056
Rental income 362,986 - - 362,986
Investment return 500,399 40,566 - 540,565
Other income 115,763 - - 115,763
Net assets released from restrictions,
satisfaction of program restrictions 228,304 (228,304) - -
Total Revenue and Support 9,283,933 (136,645) 4,287,376 13,434,664
Expenses:
Program Services:
Shelters and homes 1,287,795 - - 1,287,795
Transitional housing 527,215 - - 527,215
Low incame housing 411,824 - - 411,824
Veterans transitional housing 2,804,151 - - 2,804,151
Other veterans services 676,643 - - 876,643
Saocial services 1,852,015 - - 1,852,015
Other community services 766,654 - - 766,654
Total Program Services 8,326,297 - - 8,326,297
Supporting Services:
Management and general 678,832 - - 678,832
Fundraising 730,730 - - 730,730
Total Supporting Services 1,409,562 - - 1,409,562
Total Expenses 9,735,859 - - 9,735,859
Increase {Decrease) in Net Assets {451,926) (136,645) 4,287,376 3,608,805
Net assets, beginning 13,038,979 337,463 1,076,326 14,452,768
Net assets, ending $ 12,587,053 % 200,818 $§ 5,363,702 $ 18,151,573

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Statement of Cash Flows
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash used by operaiing activities:
Depreciation
Realized and unrealized gain on investments
Contributions of securities restricted for endowment
Contribution of securities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Principal payments on capital lease
Payments on notes payable

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash

Cash, beginning

Cash, ending

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid

Noncash Financing Activities:

$ 3,698,805

438,068
(511,946)
(4,280,710)
(4,014)
(260,284)
43,784
72,544
(240,920)
369,563

(675,110)

(14,867)
375,481

360,614

(9,238)
(40,092)

(49,330)
(363,826)
535,134

5 171,308

5 49,480

During the eleven month period ended June 30, 2013, the Organization received investments
with a fair value of $4,280,710 to be invested in perpetuity. As required by the donor, investment
income and interest from the securitios will be used exclusively for programs which serve

children's needs and those of their families.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INTERFAITH COMMURNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Name Change

Interfaith Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) changed its legal name from North County Interfaith
Council, Inc. effective October 2012. In addition, effective October 2012, the veterans’ services division of the
Qrganization obtained the dba Veterans Assistance of San Diego. The dba has no effect on the operations or
recording of transactions of the veterans’ services division.

Change to Fiscal Year End
The Organization changed its fiscal year end from July 31% to June 30" The financial statements for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013 are for eleven months.

Nature of Activities

The QOrganization is a nonprofit corparation established in August 1982 to assist persons needing assistance in
meeting basic human needs such as food, clothing, and shelter. The Organization provides a variety of social
services including transitional hausing, shelters and homes, low income housing, veterans’ services, and other
community services principally in the North San Diego County, California area.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Financial Statement Presentation
The Qrganization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

e Unrestricted net assets represent expendable funds available for operations, which are not otherwise
limited by donor restrictions.

s Temporarily restricted net assets consist of contributed funds subject to donor-imposed restrictions
contingent upon specific performance of a future event or a specific passage of time before the
Organization may spend the funds.

s Permanently restricted net assets are subject to irrevocable donor restrictions requiring that the assets
be maintained in perpetuity, usually for the purpose of generating investment income to fund current
operations.

Fair Value Measurements

The Organization defings fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid for a liability
in the principal or most advantageous market. The Organization applies fair value measurements to assets and
liabilities that are required to be recorded at fair value under generally accepted accounting principles. Fair value
measurement techniques maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs,
and are calegorized in a fair value hierarchy based on the transparency of inputs. The three levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either direclly or indirectly, for
substantially the same term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

9
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Note 1 ~ Organization and Surmmary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

The carrying values of cash, receivables, and payables approximate fair values as of June 30, 2013, due to the
relative short maturities of these instruments.

Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be

cash equivalents.

Contracts Receivable

The contracts receivable arise in the normal course of operations. It is the policy of management to review the
outstanding receivables at year end, as well as the bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an
allowance for doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts. No allowance was considered necessary at June 30,
2013, because management believes that all amounts are collectible.

Promises to Give

Unconditional written pledges to the Organization in the future are recorded as promises to give and revenue in
the year promised at the present value of expected cash flows. Unconditional written pledges must be evidenced
by donor signature and deemed legally enforceable by the Board of Directors. Conditional pledges are recognized
as revenue when the conditions are met. Intentions to pledge are recognized as revenue when the funds are
actually received. After pledges are originally recarded, an allowance for uncollectible pledges may be established
based an specific circumstances. No allowance was considered necessary at June 30, 2013, because
management believes that all amounts are coliectible. No discount was imputed at June 30, 2013, because
management determined the amount of imputed interest to be insignificant.

Investments

The Organization has investments held by the Jewish Community Foundation San Diego which are invested in
various pools and are valued at the Organization’s percentage interest in the total pools. The Organization also
has investments held at an outside broker. At June 30, 2013, the Organization's investments included domestic
and international equities, domestic and international fixed income, and other investments. All investments have
been recorded at fair market value and are valued using a market approach. The fair values of investments in
securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the closing price on the last day of business of the fiscal
year. The fair value of other investments held by the Jewish Community Foundation San Diego are determined by
investment managers in good faith using methods appropriate, and are subject to oversight and review by the
Jewish Community Foundation San Diego’s management. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments are included in the change in net assets in the Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Acquisitions of property and equipment of $5,000 or more are capitalized. Property and equipment are stated at
cost, ar if donated, at the approximate fair market value at the date of donation. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged against operations. Depreciation is computed using the straight-ine method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets of five to thirty-nine years.

Revenue and Support

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support,
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All donor-restricted support is reported as an
increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished),
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statement of
Activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are
satisfied within the same reporting period are reported as unrestricted support in that period.

Revenue from grants/contracts is recognized to the extent of eligible costs incurred up to an amount not to
exceed the total grant/contract authorized.

10
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Note 1 — Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies, continued

Contributed Materials and Services

Contributed materials are recorded at their fair market value where an objective basis is available to measure
their value. Such items are capitalized or charged to operations as appropriate. The fair market value of
contributed professional services is reported as support and expense in the period in which the services are
performed. In addition, the Organization receives a substantial amount of nonprofessional services donated by
volunteers in carrying out the Qrganization's program services. These services do not meet the generally
accepted accounting principles criteria as contributions and are, therefore, not recognized in the financial
statements.

Income Taxes
The Organization is exempt from federal income and California franchise taxes under Sections 501(c)(3) of the
Internat Revenue Code and 23701(d) of the Califomia Revenue and Taxation Code, respectively.

All tax-exempt entities are subject to review and audit by federal, state, and other applicable agencies. Such
agencies may review tha taxability of unrelated business income, or the qualification of the Organization as a tax-
exempt entity under Internal Revenue Code Section and applicable state statutes.

At June 30, 2013, the federal statute of limitations remains open for the 2010 through 2013 tax years. The statute
of limitations for the state income tax returns remains open for the 2009 through 2013 tax years.

Note 2 ~ Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances in bank accounts which, at times, exceed the federal insurable limit.
The Organization has not experienced any losses from cash concentrations and management does not believe
the Organization is exposed to any significant risk.

Note 3 ~ Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Deposits 3 34,770
QOther accounts receivable 12,9800
Promises to give 11,6867
Prepaid insurance 7,226
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets 3 66,563

Note 4 — Investmeants

The Organization’s Level 1 investments consist of endowment funds held at an outside broker. The fair value of
these investments was determined using the market approach by using the closing price on the last day of
business of the fiscal year.

The Organization’s Level 2 investments consist of endowment funds held by the Jewish Community Foundation
San Diego in a balanced pool portfolio that includes primarily publicly traded securities. The Organization has

variance power over the funds. The pooled investments are categorized as Level 2 because they have no direct
observable inputs.

11

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2A Page 23 of 42



INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
MNotes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Mote 4 ~ Investments, continued

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Organization’s investments in accordance with authoritative
fair value guidance at June 30, 2013:

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash and cash equivalents & 281,169 $ - % 281,169
Domestic equities 1,470,811 1,336,187 2,806,998
International equities 162,772 286,116 445,888
Domestic fixed income 2,042,887 752,157 2,795,044
International fixed Income 392,730 368,705 761,435
Cther - 206,474 206,474

3 4,350,369 % 2040639 § 7,300,008

Investment return for the eleven month period ended June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

interest and dividends % 234,826

Realized and unrealized gain 306,139

Investment fees {28,020}
5 511,845

Note 5 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Land 3 5,023,695
Buildings 10,993,521
Leasehold improvements 900,731
Furniture and equipment 472,508
Software 6,369
Vehicles 102,255
17,499,079

Less accumulated depreciation {4,597,088)
$ 12,901,991

Note 6 — Line of Credit

The Organization has a line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank in the amount of $500,000 that is secured by all
personal property of the Organization. Interest only is payable monthly at the greater of 1.50% above the Wall
Street Journal's prime rate (3.25% at June 30, 2013) or the floor rate of 5.00%. The line of credit expires in June
2014. The Organization had no outstanding balance at June 30, 2013.

Note 7 — Notes Payable
Notes payable at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Notes payable to City of Escondido for $§443,000, secured by real property,
due December 2018. Annual payments of principal and interest (3.00% per
annum) are due only to the extent that the Home Project provides positive
cash flow. $ 443,000

Note payable to Union Bank in aggregate monthly payments of $3,182
including interest at 4.50% per annum, secured by real property, due July
2026. 357,286

12
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Fieven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Note 7 - Notes Payable, continued

Note payable to an individual in aggregate monthly payments of $1,381
(interest only at 4.25% per annum), secured by real property. The principal
balance is due the earlier of June 2015 or sale of the property. 390,000

In December 2010, the Organization entered into residual receipts loan
agreement with the City of Oceanside (City) for $350,000. The note bears
interest at 3.00% per annum. The term is 55 years with 50.00% of the annual
residual receipts paid to City for calendar years ending 2011 through 2065. All
principal and accrued interest is due December 8, 2065. The City recorded a
deed of trust which is subordinate to Wells Fargo Bank NA. 350,000

Note payable to California Department of Housing and Community
Development for $245,000, secured by real property, due July 2057. Annual
payments of principal and interest (3.00% per annum} are due only fo the
extent that the CASA Program provides positive cash flow. The Developrent
was constructed in 1964 and is made up of eight units. 245,000

Note payable to Wells Fargo Bank in monthly payments of $1,416 including
interest at 5.50% per annum, secured by real property, remaining balance of
principal and interest due December 2020. 103,962

Mortgage payable to Midland Loan Services in monthly payments of $845
including adjustable rate interest of 0.50% above bank prime rate (3.75% at
June 30, 2013), secured by real property, due June 2025. 97,634

Mortgages payable to Midland Loan Services in monthly payments of $1,060

including interest at 7.00% per annum, secured by real property, due June

2019. 61.221
3 2,048,103

Future principal payments on notes payable at June 30, 2013, are due as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2014 $ 49,313
2015 441,890
2018 54,589
2017 57,496
2018 60,539
Thereafter 1,384,276

$ 2,048,103

Notes payable contain certain financial and non-financial covenants.
Note 8 — Capital Lease

The Organization leases solar equipment under a non-cancelable capital lease, which was included in property
and equipment as of Jupe 30, 2013, as follows:

Solar eqguipment 3 119,072
Less accumulated depreciation (37,134)
$ 82,838
13
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Mate 8 - Capital Lease, continued

Depreciation expense related to this capitalized lease was approximately $16,000 for the eleven month period
ended June 30, 2013.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2014 3 19,930
2015 20,919
2016 21,968
2017 23,075
2018 22,110
Total minimum lease payments 108,002
Amount representing interest {20,515)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 87,487

Note 8 - Commitments

Operating Leases
The Organization leases space for its Coastal Service Center in Oceanside, California under a non-cancellable

operating lease that expires in April 2014. The monthly lease payment is approximately $10,000. Total rent
expense was approximately $112,000 for the eleven month period ended June 30, 2013.

The Organization also leases copiers under an operating lease which expired March 2013. The monthly lease
payment was approximately $1,000. Total lease expense was approximately $8,000 for the eleven month pericd
ended June 30, 2013.

Future minimum lease payments under cperating leases at June 30, 2013, are due as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2014 3 104,650

Note 10 - Contingencies

Grants and Contracts

The Organization receives a significant portion of its revenues from government grants and contracts which are
subject to audit. No provision has been made for any liabilities that may arise from such audits since the amounts,
if any, cannot be determined. Management believes that any fiability which may result from these audits is not
significant.

Repayment Contingency

The Organization received a contribution of $463,907 from the City of Escondido that was used to purchase its
headquarters which is included in property and equipment in the Statement of Financial Position. The contribution
amount is to be repaid in the event that the property is sold or is no longer used for its designated purpose. The
Organization has not expressed intent to sell the property and plans to continue to operate the facility consistent
with its designated purpose.

Litigation

In the normal course of operations, the Organization is occasionally named as a defendant in various lawsuits. It
is the opinion of management and of legal counsel that the ouicome of any pending lawsuits will not materially
affect the operation or the financial position of the Organization.

14
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Note 11 — Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following at June 30, 2013:

Purpose and Time Restrictions:

Employment services 8 52,790

Oceanside purchase 50,000
_ Other 21,529

Confiaen Ti 17,600

Minor home repair 13,333
Time Restrictions:

Unappropriated endowment eamings 40,566

Promises to give 5,000

$___ 200818
Note 12 - Permanently Rastricted Endowment

The Organization’s donor-restricted endowment consists of pooled funds at the Jewish Community Foundation of
San Diego and is established for a variety of purposes, as well as investments held at an outside broker
established to serve children’s needs and those of their families. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Directors of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (“UPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, the Organization classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment,
and {c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-
restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily
restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner that is
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Qrganization
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

1) The duration and preservation of the fund

2) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
3) General economic conditions

4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
6) Other resources of the Organization

7) The investment policies of the Organization

At June 30, 2013, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the following:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Toftal
Donor-restricted endowment funds  § - % 40,566 § 5,363,702 § 5,404,268

15
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

MNote 12 — Permanently Restricted Endowment, continued

Changes in endowment net assets for the eleven months ended June 30, 2013, consisted of the foliowing:

Temporarily Permanently
Unresfricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year b (53.451) $ - 8 1,076,326 $ 1,022,875
Activity:
Donations - - 4,287,376 4,287,376
interest and dividends 140,796 40,566 - 181,362
Realized and unrealized gain 216,067 - - 216,067
Investment expense (21,490) - - (21,490}
Appropriations (281,922) - - (281,922)
Net Activity 53,451 40,566 4,287,376 4,381,393
Endowmeant net assets,
end of year 3 - $ 40,566 § 5,363,702 $ 5,404,268

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policigs for endowment assets that attempt to provide
funding for the operating expenses of programs supported by its endowments. In order to limit risk exposure,
account features such as asset allocation, diversity, duration of holding each security, return on investment, and
investment quality shali be applied, measured, and reviewed.

Investment Strategy

The investment strategy of the Organization is to develop a diversified portfolia of passive investments. For equity
investments, the selection of such holdings is based on the merits of long-term ownership without the intent of
short-term trading. To achieve investment objectives, the Organization relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield
(interest and dividends).

Spending Policy

The Organization has a palicy of appropriating for distribution annually an amount equal to 5% of the investment
accounts balances as of the last day of the prior calendar year. The Organization expects the current spending
policy to allow its endowment to meet the needs of the Organization. This is consistent with the Organization’s
objective to provide funding for the operating expenses of programs as well as to provide additional real growth
through new gifts and investment return.

Note 13 — Board Designated Long-Term

The Organization also has unrestricted funds held in a pooled account at the Jewish Community Foundation of
San Diego. The Board of Directors has designated these funds to support the Organization for a long but
unspecified period of time. These funds are invested in a manner similar to the permanently restricted endowment
funds. All earnings related to the board designated fong-term funds are recorded in the undesignated net asset
balance.

Board designated long-term investments,

beginning of year $ 1,874,998
Board designated contributions o -
Board designated long-term investments,

end of year $ 1,874,998

16
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INTERFAITH COMMURNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 14 — Pension Plan

The Organization had a 401(k) retirement plan which covered substantially all employees 21 years of age or oider
who had completed one year of service as of December 31, 2012. Effective January 1, 2013 the plan was
amended and covered substantially all employees 18 years of age or older who have completed three months of
service. A contribution to the plan is paid monthly at a rate determined by the Board of Directors. Employee
contributions to the plan are at the discretion of each eligible employee and are matched by the Organization
monthly at a percentage determined by the Board of Directors. For the period January 1, 2013 through June 30,
2013 the Organization contributed approximately $64,000 to the Plan, representing a 2% employer contribution
and a 2% employer match.

Note 15 — Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

A resolution was passed by the Board of Directors in May 2013 to merge Interfaith Community Services, Inc. and
Community Resource Center. The target date for completion of the merger was June 30, 2014, at which time
Community Resource Center would become a part of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. Effective July 1, 2013
the Organizations had the same Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and identical Boards of
Directors. In December 2013, the Board of Directors of Community Resource Center and Interfaith Community
Services, Inc. unanimously decided to suspend the merger, but will continue to partner together whenever
possible to best serve those in need within North San Diego County.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through December 18, 2013, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

17
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INTERFAITH COMMUMNITY SERVICES, INC.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Eleven month period ended June 30, 2013

Federal
CFDA Caontract
FedaraliPass-Through Grantor and Program Title Number Number Expenditures
L.8. Depanmant of Hoysing and Urban Cevelopman
Direct programs: ‘
Genesis | 14.235 CA0E9938D100801 3 113,633
Genesis 1 14,235 CAO700LID011205 71575
Casa 14235 CA0711L90011205 74,503
Raymond's Refuge 14.235 CADI441 903011203 75,559
Spruce Street 14.235 CAQ710L9D011205 365,044
Shetter Plus Care 14.238 CAJ693(C8D100801 156,040
Pass-through from Veterans Vilfage of San Diego:
New Resolve 14.235 n/a 51,337
Veterans Homelessness Demonstration Program 14,260 nfa 95,710
Pass-through from County of San Diega:
Emergency Shefter Grant 14.231 523693 45,076
Pass-through from State Department of Housing and Community Development:
Federal Ermergency Shelier Grani 14.231 08-FESG-4405 9,837
Federal Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 08-FESG-44058 5,531
Pass-through from City of Carlsbad:
Social Senvices 14.218 nfa 4,418
Pass-through from City of Vista:
Senicr Services 14.218 nfa 8,030
Pass-through from City of Escondido via Narth County Community Services:
Winter Shelter - Haven House 14218 nla 20.060
1,108,283
U.S. Department of Labor
Direct program:
Homeless Veterans Reintegration Program 17.808 HV-16337-07-60-5-6 289,234
Pass-through from San Diego Workforce Partnarship:
TYA WIA Gang Pravention 17.259 260-20 164,880
Pass-through from California Employment Davelopment Dept:
Cal EDD WIA VEAP 25% 17.802 K183176 236885
500,799
U.S, Deparfment of Justice
Pass-through from City of Escondido:
Department of Justice - ECSS 16.745 afa 3182
8182
5, Bepartment of Health and Humen Ssrvices
Pass-thraugh from County of San Diego:
Via North County Lifeline - Family Self-Sufficiency 93571 525092 88,410
Family Self-Sufficiency Sarnvices - Infand 33.571 544434 31,279
Passed-thraugh to Escondido Education Compact 83571 544434 7.424
Family Self-Sufficiency Services - Coastal 93.571 544433 20,987
Passed-through to Community Resource Canter 93.571 544433 14,185
Passed-through to Catholic Charities 93.571 544433 4,080
Passed-through to Vista Community Clinic 93.571 544433 9,085
Minor Home Repair 33.0562 525028 36,900
212,350
Depadment of Homeldnd Security
Pass-through program from Catholic Charities:
EFSP 97024 nia 50,853
50,853
U.3. Department of Veteran Affairs
Direct programs:
Veterans Transitional Housing - Oceanside 64.024 07-716-CA 921,389
Veterans Transitional Housing - Aster 54.024 98-027-CA 348,310
Veterans Transitional Housing - Merle's Place 54,024 05-016-CA 556,889
Veterans Recuperative Beds 64,024 VA262-P-0438 706,261
2.532.849

See independents auditors' reporn: and notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

1. Basis of The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the
Presentation “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of the Organization under
programs of the federal government for the eleven month period ended June 30,
2013. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the Organization.

2. Summary of Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
Significant accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
Accounting contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations
Policies wherein cerfain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to

reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

3. Subrecipients See Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for amounts provided to

subrecipients.

19
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

To the Audit Committee
Interfaith Community Services, inc.
Escondido, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. (“the Organization®),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities and
cash flows for the eleven month period then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our repart thereon dated December 18, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Qrganization’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not exprass an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance. ‘

Our consideration of internal contro! was for the fimited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknasses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item
2013-1 that we cansider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinicn on compliance with those provisions was nof an
abjective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards
and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-2.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Organization in a separate letter dated December
18, 2013.
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The Organization’s Response to Findings

The Organization’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was not subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purgése of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

’//’17&,. T e opwe A

Decamber 18, 2013
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independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Audit Committee
Interfaith Community Services, Inc.
Escondido, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the comptiance of Interfaith Community Services, Inc. (“the Organization”) compliance with the
types of requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on the Organization’s major faderal program for the eleven month period ended June 30, 2013. The
Organization’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Organization’s major federal program based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred fo above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the eleven month
period ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion an the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over campliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
contral over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
cantrol over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal controi over compliance that we consider
to be material weaknesses. However, we identified a deficiency in internal control over compliance, as described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-2 that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

The Organization's response to the nancompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control aver compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

*@m TR Hepee AT

December 18, 2013
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

i Summary of independent Auditors’ Resuits

Financial Statements

(@)

The type of auditors’ report issued on the basic financial statements:
Unqualified opinion

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

(b) Material weakness(es) identified? No
(c) Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes
See item 2013-01.
(d) Noncompliance, material to the financial statements: No
Federal Awards
Internal Control Over Major Programs:
(e) Material weakness(es) identified? Ne
(f) Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes
See items 2013-02.
(9) The type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:
Unqualified opinion
(h) Any audit findings that are required to be reported under Section .510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133: Yes
(i) Major Programs:
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program Amount Expended
64.024 VA Homeless Providers Grant
And Per Diem Program 32,532,849
() Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:
$300,000
(k) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB Circular A-

133 No .

24
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

il Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards:
item: 2013-01
Subject: Motes Payable

Condition, Criteria, Effect:

While Interfaith Community Services, Inc. monitored non-financial and compliance covenant
requirements during the year, in two cases, required compliance information was submitted late.
The result of not providing timely reporting to funding sources could have a potential impact on the
Organization’s relationship with these sources.

Recommendation:

There needs to be an understanding of all loan covenants at a level higher than the program
managers and procedures implemented to ensure oversight of this process. Additionally, as new
agreements are entered into, procedures need to be implemented to communicate those
requirements and develop the oversight process. We recommend that the Organization educate its
staff as to the risks associated with non-compliance of these covenants.

Corrective Action Plan:

The Organization will continue to monitor the non-financial and compliance covenant requirements
and submit the required reporting on a timely fashion.

. Findings Relating to the Federal Awards and Questioned Costs:

ltem: 2013-02

Agency: VA Homeless Providers Grant and Per Diem Program, CFDA # 64.024,
U.S Department of Veteran Affairs

Award(s): Veterans Recuperative Beds, 10/1/12 - 9/30/13, VA262-12-R-0581

Subject: Daily Sign-in Log

Condition, Criteria, Effect:

We noted that the grant agreements and the GPD Guide Capital Grant Recipient stated,
"Pariodically, liaisons should verify invoices by asking to see the supporting documentation, (i.e.,
daily sign-in log, or other documentation showing that the Veteran was present and receiving
services on that day)". MHM noted that the above specific requirement is not being fulfilled in one
of the four VA programs listed above. Qut of a sample of 10 individuals selected for testing, 2 had
not signed in one day for the period selected for testing, which was a month or less. These
individuals also did not sign a certification that they had received services for the days that they
had not signed in.

Recommendation:

We recommend having the sign in sheets audited for missing signatures (as is currently being done
in three of the four programs) and then monthly during their meeting with the Case Managers
having program participants with missing signaturas sign a certification stating that, although they
did not sign-in for X number of days during the month (billing period), they did receive services.

25
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Corrective Action Plan:

The Organization has implemented a program-wide standard operating procedure of sign-in ogs
that include daily, weekly, and monthly audits by responsible leaders and managers including the
resident managers, case managers, and program manager. The Organization has also established
joint bi-monthly audits by the VA Liaison and the Program Manager. Corrective actions to missing
signatures mandate responsible managers to issue and ensure residents sign an absentee form to
certify the number of days of accupancy and services received.

Questioned Costs: N/A

. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

A. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Prepared in Accardance with Government Auditing
Standards:
ltem: 2012-01
Subject: Notes Payable

Condition, Criteria, Effect:

North County Interfaith Council, Inc. was unable to provide timely support that the non-financial
and compliance covenant requirements were monitored during the year to make sure that the
Organization is in compliance with all applicable loan covenants. The result of not having
documented controls in place to incoming finance employees could have a potential impact on the
Organization’s relationship with its funding sources. Near the end of audit fieldwork, a summary of
the non-financial and compliance covenant requirements was provided documenting the current
status of applicable loan covenants.

Recommendation:

There needs to be an understanding of all loan covenants at a level higher than the program
managers and procedures implemented to ensure oversight of this process. Additionally, as new
agreements are entered into, procedures need to be implemented to communicate thase
requirements and develop the oversight process. We recommend that the Organization educate its
staff as to the risks associated with noen-compliance of these covenants.

Current Status:
Finding is repeated see 2013-01 above.

B. Findings Relating to the Federal Awards and Questioned Costs:
ltem: 2012-02
Agency: VA Homeless Providers Grant and Per Diem Program, CFDA # 64.024,

U.S Department of Veteran Affairs

Award(s): Veterans Transitional Housing - Oceanside, 4/1/11 — 3/31/12, 07-716-CA
Veterans Transitional Housing - Aster, 4/1/11 — 3/31/12, 98-027-CA
Veterans Transitional Housing - Merle’s Place, 4/1/11 - 3/31/12, 05-016-CA
Veterans Recuperative Beds, 7/1/11 - 3/31/12, VA262-P-0438

Subject: Daily Sign-in Log
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INTERFAITH COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Eleven Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

Condition, Criteria, Effect:

We noted that the grant agreements and the GPD Guide Capital Grant Recipient stated,
"Periodically, liaisons should verify invoices by asking to see the supporting documentation, (i.e.,
daily sign-in log, or other documentation showing that the Veteran was present and receiving
services on that day)". MHM noted that the above specific requirement is not being fulfilled in one
of the four VA programs listed above. Out of a sample of 40 individuals selected for testing, 4 had
not signed in every day for the period selected for testing, which was a month or less. These
individuals also did not sign a certification that they had received services for the days that they
had not signed in.

Additionally, MHM noted that in determining that a client is eligible to receive assistance under this
program the VA liaison will sign the Referral, Admissions and Transfer {(RAT) form. Qut of a sampie
of 40 individuals selected for testing, 2 did not have the signature of the VA liaison on the RAT
form.

Recommendation:

We recommend having the sign in sheets audited for missing signatures (as is currenily being done
in three of the four programs) and then monthly during their meeting with the Case Managers
having program participants with missing signatures sign a certification stating that, although they
did not sign-in for X number of days during the month (billing period), they did receive services.

Additionally, we recommend that a supervisory review of files is in place to ensure that all RAT
forms are appropriately signed by the VA liaison prior to clients being admitted to the program.

Current Status:
All RAT's selected for testing had VA liaison signatures. Remainder of finding is repeated see
2013-02 above.

Questioned Costs: N/A
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Annual Report
Actuat Operating Costs
AMC 180 {Rev, Oct 2008)

DEPARTMENT GF HQUSING AMD COMMUNITY DEVELOPSMENT

FAMILIES MOVING TO WORK (FMTW)
8. REPORT OF ACTUAL OPERATING COSTS

Reperting Periad: ~ 8/1/2012 tc 06/30/2013
Confract No:  99-FMTW-D10 Units ~ Assisted: 8
Project Name: CASAWCrKs Apariments Units — Total 8
Prepared by:
Date Prepared: Unit Months: 36
ACCOUNT NAME UNIT EXPENSES PROJECT TOTALS
AEETOVEN
- Approved | Actual  approvednor-] Actual Non- T prapasad Actust Total Total Actuat | Project
ACCOUNT Assisted Asalstad Assistad Assistod Commoercial £ Expenses | Expenses Variance
GODES A @ )
MANAGEMENT FEE: 6200/6300
4 Management Fee or Sponsor Overnead 8320 0 g q O 1] G Q & G
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES: 6200/6300
2 Advertising 8216 ¢ 0 1] a 3] 0 0 )
3 Apariment Resale Expense (Cooperatives) 6235 0 G 0 0 0 4 4 Q
4 Other Ranting Expenses 6250 Q Y G 0 2 ¢ Q Q
5 Office Salaries 6310 0 3.802 [¢] 0 2 G 0 3,602
& Office Supplies 6311 o 7ct Y 0 a ¢] V] 70%
7 Office or Model Apariment Rant 6312 i} 0 c o o O 0 0
3 Manager anc Superintencen: Salaries 5330 0 21815 c 1] ] 0 0 21,615
9 Manager's or Superinlendent's Rent Free Unit 6331 Q G Q a 0 G 0 a
10 Legal Expense - Project 624G 3] g q 4] 0 0 [ Q
11 Audit Expensa - Project 6350 o €,661 1] Q 1] a [} 6,691
12 Bookkeaping Fees/Aocounting Services 6351 o 0 0 4] o] a a g
13 Telzphane and Answering Service Expensas 360 g 506 Q 0 0 ¢] 4 506
14 Sad Debi Expense 637C 0 Q a O [H] o Q o]
15 Miscellaneous Administrative Expensas (specify) 839¢ i 333 qQ 0 b 4 0 333
16 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2048 0T 4 33448 Q 1] Q 9 9 443
UTILITIES EXPENSES: 6400
17 Fuel QiliCoat G426 q 0 & 0 a o k4] 8] G
18 Eleclricity §45¢ 0 2379 b3 Q B ) 9 2,379 79
16 Water 6451 Q 5244 & a ] ¢ 3 5,244 44'}
20 Gas 5452 ) 4 G a & ] i O 0
21 Sewer 8453 g 0 3 0 g o i o] 0
22 TOTAL UTILITIES EXPENSES 84007 [ 7,623 g D & 0 & 7623 {7 B2
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES: 6500
23 Janitor and Cleaning Payioll a 4] [s) 1] 4] 3 v} o] 0
24 Jaritor and Cleaning Supphies i3 a 0 o g d 3] O g
25 Jenitor and Cleaning Conlracts Q 633 a 0 Q a ¢ 633 (5334
26 Exterminating Payrofl/Contract Q 427 [ 0 5} 0 G 427 {427
27 Exiemminating Suppliss Q [ 0 ] 0 2 4 g q
28 Gasbage and Trash Removal g 3,008 Bl ] Q a 0 3008 {30088
29 Security PayrciiiContract 0 o} Q o} 0 9 0 s} 0
34 Grounds Payroft G 0 9 g g 9 4] 2
31 Grounds Suppiies [ o s} ) Q 9 G o}
32 (rounds Conlract 0 3,241 0 a 1] 3 5] 3241
33 Repairs Payroll iH 2,573 ] ) a ) I 2,873
34 Repairs Material 0 5,907 a 2 0 a G 5,907
35 Repairs Contract 0 11,260 0 9 0 3 c 11,260
46 Elevator Maintenance/Contract G 0 0 9 9 Q Y 8]
37 Heating/Cooling Repairs and Mainienanca 4] i} 0 i} 0 4 4 a
38 Swimming Pocl MaintenanceiCaniract G g 0 b} 0 0 a Q
39 Snow Removal Q 0 o Q Q g g g
40 Decarating/Payroli Contrasct G 3 9 2 0 ) c bl
41 Decorating Supplias c 0 a 3 G 0 [+ ]
42 Vahicle and Mainl Equipment Operafion/Repairs I 1,065 a a2 [ a 8] 1.065
43 Misc,Operating and Maintenance Expenses {spacify} 4 3.662 0 g o 0 9 3.962
44 TOTAL OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES |y 32,174 Q 2] 9@ Q 2 A2 1474
TAXES AND INSURANCE: 8700
45 Roal Estate Taxes 8710 a 72 Q i} ] 0 Q 72
48 Payroft Taxes (Project's Shara} a7 4 4,695 Q 9 0 4] Q 4,695
47 Misc, Taxes, Licenses and Permits 8718 G 43 0 g Q 0 0 0
48 Property and Liability Insurance {Hazard) 8720 Y 2,109 0 9 0 a ] 2,109
49 Fideiity Bond nsurance 572 o] 0 0 a i q 0 0 b
50 Worker's Compensation 3722 g 1,033 0 Q Q D Q 1.033 {1.033%
31 Heatih Insurance and Oiher Employes Benefits 8723 ¢ 9,661 Q g 0 0 Q 9,661 {9661}
52 Olhgr Insurance 6729 [ b 0 9 0 0 a 4] 9
53 TOTAL TAXES AND INSURANCE SI007 5] 17570 Q Q N Q 3 17.57G {17 5704
ASSISTED LIVING/BOARD & CARE EXPENSES; 6300
54 Food 5832 & 1,006 4] & ) 5] g 1006 {508y
55 Reacreation and Rehabditalion £320 g 0 A 0 0 0 Q Q K
56 Rehabilitation Galaries 6963 a 23.674 0 4] o 0 a 23,674 (36741
57 Other Service Expenses §990 g 14,886 q 0 Q 0 0 14,836 {14, 9055
58 TOTAL ASSISTED LIVING EXPENSES £3047 8 30666 8] 0 0 a Q BiishlY {155 BREY
61 TOTAL QPERATING COSTS { 130 381 b 3 g {4 4 130,381 {130,351 }i
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Annuaf Report
Actual Cash Flow Analysis
AMG 1871 (Rev, Oct 2€09)
FAMILIES MOVING TO WORK (FMTW)
9. ACTUAL CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

Reparfing Pericd: 0B/01/2012 to 08/30/2013
Contract No: 99-FMTW-010 Unils -~ Assistad: &
Project Narme: CASAWrks Apartments ) Liits -~ Total: 8
Prepared by:
Date Frepared: Unit Months: 46
ACCOUNT NAME ASSISTED UNITS NON-ASSISTED UNITS COMMERCIAL TOTAL PROJECT e
Aggiove RERIN B PR T Rl : Tashiiow
Accourt i Cashfiow Cashflow Cashfiow | Cashftow §i Cashflow | ¢cocngaw Cashiflow Variance
Todes Al 8} i) an 2 ) ) & 5
REVENUE ACCOUNTS/RENT REVERUE: 5100
1 Hent Revenue 5120 4] 12,454 Q 0 a G 0 12,454 12,454
2 Tenant Assistance Pzymenis 5121 0 9 0 0 Q ¢ 0 Bl a
3 Rent revenue - Stores and Commergial 5140 2 0 0 0 0 0 a J a
4 Garage and Parking Spaces 5170 a [1] 0 Q 0 [} o e} o
5 Flexible Subsidy Reveruo 5185 0 108,263 0 a 0 [ g 108,233 106,283
5 Misceltaneous Rent Revenue 5190 2} 0 o o3 0 [ g 2 0
7 Excess Rent 5161 bl 8] 8] Y a ¢ Q j 8]
g Rent Revenuefinsurance 5192 0 o 0 9 bl o} o ¢ [u]
9 Spacial Claims Reverue 5193 o 3} Q o Q G o ¢} 0
10 Retained Excess Income 5194 o 0 0 Q "] G Q 2 0
11 GROSS RENT REVEMUE §100T 0 118,747 L] 2 0 g [ 118,747 118,747
Fotal vacancies (G0 Use Only] 52007 i 4 ko [ o ] 3 & 4
ASSISTED LIVING/BOARD & CARE REVENUES: 5300
17 Food 5332 0 ] 0 [ o} ¢ 9 0 0
18 Recreation (Astvities} and Rehabifitation 3380 a 0 Q 0 0 ¢ Q 0 s}
13 Rehabilitation 5385 o aQ o} g 0 G [¢) 0 0
20 Other Service Revenug 5390 a 2} s} ¢ 2 G 0 0 0
Tafal Living Ravenpe RI0T [ [ 0 0 o a 4 4 a
FINANCIAL REVENUE: 5400
21 Financial Revenue - Project Cperations 8410 2 o Q 0 a ¢ Q 0 0
Tofal Financial Revenue 54007 0 '] 0 [ a [ g 4
OTHER REVENUE: 5900
22 Laundry and Vending Revenus 5910 i 530 2 0 G 0 3 530 530
23 NSF and Late Charges £920 0 Q & 8] g ol 4] 0 l¢]
24 Damages ard Claaning Fees 5920 0 bl ] i [ a & Q 0
25 Forfgited Tenant Sacurity Deposits 5940 1] ] g 0 & Q 3 4] Q
23 Other Ravarue 5930 3 a 4] 9 2] 0 G 8} o]
Total Other Revenue 53007 9 330 i a & 4] 3 530 £30
27 EFFECTIVE GROSS RENT (EGR) 51527 ] 119,277 13 0 @ 13 0 119,271 149,277
28 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES O00T & 130.38% 4 kel @ & 0 130,381 {130,381}
29 NET QPERATING INCOME (NOI) 50007 ] £11,1043 0 0 -] 1] 0 {11,404 {11,104}
FINANCIAL EXPENSES: 6800
30 Non-Contingert Debt Saivics {specily lendsr) 6325
4 = bl ] a 0 Iy a2 0 0 4]
ctgag : ' 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0
Srd Morigagas hil 0 i) 0 Q a 4] 0 )
31 HCD Required Payments : 8890 0 4] o 0 Q 0 s} a Q
32 Lzase Payment €890 o 0 9 0 0 Q ¢ 0 G
33 Miscellzneous Financial Expenses 6890 o [¥) 0 [4] 0 0 a 0 Q
Total Financial Expenses 6800T 4 4 0 a 5 a [ ¢ g
FUNDED RESERVES; 130G
34 Escrow Ceposits 1310 0 o Q 0 0 s] ¢ 9 g
35 Replacement Raserve-Deposit 1320 b Q 4] a 0 Q e Q Q
36 Opzrating Reserve-Deposit 1300 b 0 9 4] 0 g ¢ 0 Q
37 Cther Reserves {specify} I¥)
13 1330 o 0 9 [ o 0 & ) o
74 1330 a2 1] O ¢ i} ¢ a 0 0
i . 1330 b Q G G 0 Q Q 0 0
Total Reserve Depasiis 9 7 0 [ 0 4] %] 0
38 PROJECT CASH FLOW (CF) G 1104 0 [ @ 0 g {11,104 {11.1044
ADDITIONAL REVENUE:
38 {nct used) O bl il 0 G
40 Withdrawal from Cperating Ressrves 0 b 3 G 0 Q g ¢ g
44 Borrower Contribution 0 11,104 E1] ) 4] 0 2] 11,104 11,104
42 Other {specify} ] Q G [{] Q & 0 o]
Total Additional Revenue ¢ 11,104 b 0 Y Q @ 11,104 11,104
USE OF CASHFLOW:
43 HCD Interest Paymenis by ! ad a i) 0 Q i) a
44 Assel Mgmt Fee (CHRP-RISURRP & HOME-pre-UMR Oniy} o3 J ] G 0 Q o] 0 il
45 Assel Mgmt Fes/Prisshp Costs (MHP/HOME under UMR) & 0 g 4 4] vl a i3 Il
46 Dorcower Distributions i 9 Q ¢ 0 0 0 0 b
47 Residuat Receipt Loan Payments b 2 G ¢ 0 0 a 0 9
43 Other {speciy) _ e G 2 0 o 0 o 0 o o
Total lse of Cash Flow ] 9 b} Q Q4 g 3] 0 a

29

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2A Page 41 of 42



STATE GF CALIFORNA DEPARINENT OF HO
ANNUAL REFORT-RESERVE AALANCES
AND DTHER ACCOUNT BALANCES
ARG 182 {Rav 130417}

AMC 182 - RESERVE AND OTHER ACCOUNT BALANCES
Project Namo: CASA Works Apariments
HCD Contract #{s}: G6-FMTW-010
Prepared 8y Joseph Stemmler
Date Prepared: kRlzianl
Reportinng period - from {mimidaiyyk Bz
Reporting period - to {mnuddiyy): W

Please complete the fo(lowlng table vm.h the appropnate amounts&_r_g_qg_iié_ggw
For CHRP-R, DS, HCD HOME £HDG & i st Band stifamen
0 i i, T Other Reserey Tenant
Rescrve Rasarve Regarva (spectfy) Security
Account Account Account Deposits

Account Numbers:

Annual Required Deposits =
A Beginning Account Balancer $
Astual Deposits (F differeat than
respived Depasis, enlehn bhitw)
Sacurity Deposits Rocibad
interest Zamed

Section A Sublotl: | $ T3 “1% BE “15 302
‘Explanatios of Deposits:

5, Withdrawals (enter withdrawal request numbar, date and amount Bokow}:

Withdrawsl Date of o [ " T N Othar Tenant
Reguest Withdrawal N i Sacurity
Humber from Accomnt Raserve Rasarve Reserve Resarve

Bark Charges/Fees Paid

Other Debits/Reductions \ww b&w;
Capogt ity H

to Tenants

Secunly Depost Ameunts Dedusted
o Tonant Accounts Reteabily
inherest Baid tpon Moveout
Section 8 Subtotal:

©. Ending Avcaunt Balance: i -1 i i
1Explanation of Withdrawals linclude erolanation of withdrawals made withoul HCD spnrosaty:

additional Requested Information (explain. any "No® and "N/A™ answers}):

Hem Yes [ No E N/A Commeals

1. Operating Reserves:
Have deposits been made as required | O ves He Own/a #o preject eashitow for the period
ty HGD?

2. Replacement Rasarves:
Have deposits been made as required | Oves @ no Oy o profect cashitow oy lhe petiod
by HCD?

3. Transition Reserves:
Have deposits been made as requirsd § Oves One @0
by HCD?

4. Other Reserves {specify}:
Have deposits been made as requirad | Oves Quo @wma
by HCD?

5. Reserve Accoums:
Are aff Accounts insured by the Federstl Oves O @ap
Governman?

8, Reserve Accounts:

Mas HCD avproval obiained pror o Ovs QOnoe @wa

Account withérawals?

7. Security Deposit Account: Socurky deposits are mmq—al rncy are accounded for
atanee squst ndpreater than seauty | Oves @rno O 5 ek 1k & Bapk avcouss dos fs
deposit labiity plus interesi? the cost of such accourt
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Grant Cover Page

(Choose one) MINI-GRANT (Chooseone) X REGULAR GRANT

Project Name: Just in Time for Foster Total # of people served: Amount
Youth College Bound Approximately 70 former foster youth Requested: $9,600
Date Submitted: 1/7/2015 Total # of San Marcos residents served:

15-20students

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website Contact Person -Name, Title & Phone, email

Just in Time for Foster Youth Don Wells, Executive Director
PO Box 81292 858.663.2081
San Diego, CA 92138 dwells@)jitfosteryouth.org

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant):

Historically there are 15-20 transitioning foster youth residing in San Marcos who participate
in the Just in Time for Foster Youth College Bound Program. Just in Time (JIT) requests a $9,600
grant from the San Marcos Community Foundation to provide 8 of those transitioning foster youth with the
necessary computers, technology tools, school and dorm supplies to support success on their new journey as
college students. These resources will be provided along with a caring and committed JIT College Bound
Coach (volunteer) to provide the encouragement, support and attention that will eventually help lead to
graduation. This grant request does not fund personnel or administrative costs -only essential tech tools,
equipment and supplies going directly to youth to help them succeed in college.

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community:

For the 10% of transitioning foster youth entering college, many have tuition covered but do not have the
essential resources, including human resources, to be truly successful. Without these support systems, the
college graduation statistics for former foster youth would stay at their traditional 2-4% levels rather than the
more promising rates since College Bound's inception. Since 2009, 81% of the students enrolled in our College
Bound program have either graduated, gone on to graduate school, or are still enrolled. Achieving these
outcomes is about more than providing the doorway to higher education. It requires a commitment to follow
through by keeping track of their progress and deepening their connections to our programs and community.

Please attach the following items.
Both Mini-Grant & Regular: Expected date project will begin/end: 2/1/2015

1. Budget forrequest (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) Date by which funds will be expended: 11/30/2015
Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit

2.
3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations

Signature of President or Authorized Officer

1/7/2015
Wame, Thitte Date

a. Regular Grants Only:

1-2 page narrative

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990

.. ) Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to:
Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including

San Marcos Community Foundation

any management letters associated with Audit. c/o City of San Marcos
d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 1 Civic Center Drive
Application San Marcos, CA 92069
~ Optional: letters of support Email (PDF Format): wkasennan@san-marcos .net
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mailto:dwells@jitfosteryouth.org

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION BUDGET WORKSHEET
Just in Time for Foster Youth’s College Bound Program

65 Youth Awards

Laptop, printer, books, dorm set up, school supplies @$1,200 each $78,000

15 Youth Laptops (Year Round) @$500 each $7,500

6 Youth Tuition Fees Assistance @ $300 each $1,800

15 Youth Book Assistance @ $200 each $3,000

Transportation Assistance $1,850
25 Youth with bus passes @ $74 each

10 Youth with School Supplies @ $60 each $600

College Bound Event/Year Long Events $5,000

1 Graduate Scholarship $2,000

Computer Repairs/software for Youth $1,000

Program Coordinator $20,000

Administrative Costs $5,000

Total Budget for this PROJECT: $125,750

Grant Request Amount: $9,600

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? Possibly

Please list any other funding sources for this project.

Committed (C) or Pending (P)

$20,000 Farrell Family Foundation C
$10,000 Goldberg Charitable Trust C
$10,000 Crevier Family Foundation C
$10,000 Cox Cares Foundation C
$10,000 Ashford Education P
$7,500 Issa Family Foundation C
$5,000 Weil Foundation C
$5,000 Mission Bch Women’s Club P
$5,000 AmericanWest Bank P
$5,000 Hill Charitable Trust C
$4,000 Day For Change C
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Just in Time For Foster Youth
Statement of Activity - San Diego

REVENUE
Direct Public Support
Corporations
Foundations
Individuals
Civic and Faith Organizations
Special Events
Gross Revenue Special Events
Less Direct Costs of Special Events
Special Events - Net Revenue
Total Direct Public Support
Government Agencies
Grants Restricted
Subtotal Revenue

In-Kind Donations
Youth Awards
Rent
SVP In-kind Donations
Total In-Kind Donations
Interest and Dividend Income
TOTAL REVENUE

AWARDS AND EXPENSES
Program Awards
Basic Needs
My First Home
College Bound/Vocational
Career Horizons
Bridge to Success
Financial Fitness
Coaching/Volunteer
Ambassador/ LEAP/Take Charge
Community and other
Payroll and Indirect Expense Allocations
Total Program Awards
In-Kind Awards
Educational & Vocational
Basic Needs
Career Horizons
Home Furnishings
Miscellaneous
Total In-Kind Awards

FY15 Budget

FY15 Budget

155,000
405,000
530,000

50,000

187,000

187,000

1,327,000
13,000

1,340,000

210,000
51,120
25,000

286,120

1,626,120

80,000
34,000
100,000
29,300
28,700
72,000
16,412
5,000
5,000
426,314

796,726

6,000
23,000
6,000
103,000
72,000

210,000
Page 1
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FY15 Budget

Development and Fundraising Expenses

Advertising/Promotional 32,200

Consultants (including SVP inkind $10k) 37,000

Credit Card Charges

Event Expense 10,000
Miscellanous/Rent 12,000

Printing, Copying & Postage 6,400

Travel/Meals/Entertainment 1,200

Sales Force Software Services

Payroll and Indirect Expense Allocations 258,006
Total Development and Fundraising Expense 356,806

Administrative and Office Expenses
Personnel Expenses
Employees Salaries 553,720
Insurance - Healthcare 72,220
Payroll Service Fees -

Payroll Taxes 45,462
Workers' Compensation 3,351
Total Personnel Expenses 674,753

Other Administrative and Office Expenses

Bank Fees 410
Computer and Internet 9,960
Contract Services 80,000
Credit Card Fees 6,000
Insurance - Liability, D and O 6,800
Telephone, Telecommunications 6,600
Office Supplies 5,300
Printing and Copying 6,200
Advertising/Promotional 6,000
Office Rent - In-kind 51,120
Office Rent - Annex 4,596
Registration and Licensing Fees 160
Staff Development 8,000
Travel and Meetings 4,400
Depreciation Expense 3,600
Total Other Administrative and Office Expenses 199,146
Total Adminsitrative and Office Expenses 873,899
Payroll and Indirect Expense Allocations (708,642)
Net Administrative and Office Expenses 165,257
TOTAL AWARDS AND EXPENSES 1,528,789
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 97,331

Page 2
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Just in Time for Foster Youth
Board of Directors Roster, Affiliations, and Tenure
FY 2014/2015

Board membership has a minimum two-year term with no term limits. 100% of board
members contribute financially to the JIT organization. There is a “Give or Get” requirement
of $3,000 per year, and every board member is required to actively participate in at least one
committee, make every effort to attend key JIT events, and attend at least 75% of the board
meetings.

Kristy Gregg
Board Chair, Retired Bank Executive
2 years

Keith Brandt
Vice-Chair, President, California Wealth Transitions
2 years

Krystal Joscelyne
Treasurer, Strategic & Financial Planning Manager, Sempra Energy
1 year

Patricia Benesh
Secretary, Owner, AuthorAssist.com; 7Memories.com
6 years

Walter Borschel
Retired Health Care Administrator
Incoming

Chris Burr
Senior VP/Relationship Manager, AmericanWest Bank
Incoming

Gabrielle Durand
Project Manager, Workforce Intelligence, John Deere; Durand Mobile Notary
1 year

Theodore DeFrank
President and CFO, Active Motif
1 year

Kristin Fitzner

Manager, Corporate Marketing & Sponsorship, U.S. Bank
Incoming
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Lisa Foussianes
Vice President, Client Manager, Square 1 Bank
5 years

Pamela Hunt
Retired Educator
1 year

James Lepanto
Behavioral Health Consultant
1 year

Jennell Mott
Business Operations Manager, Managed Solution
Incoming

Brad Norris
Philanthropist and Community Volunteer
2 years

Jessica Preese
Account Manager, United Health Group
2 years

Marge Schingle
Senior Director, WageWorks
1 year

Tina Thomas

Retired Architect
1 year

ADVISORY COUNCIL

Jorge Cabrera
Supervisor, Casey Family Programs

Harriet Carter, Esq.
A Professional Law Corporation

Margie de Ruyter
Consultant, Community and Workforce Development

Lynne Doyle
Chief Financial Officer, Sand River Holdings
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Sean Ferrel
CEO/President, Managed Solution

Judy Forrester
President/CEO, USO San Diego

Barney King
CEO, Macnas Consulting International

Marcy Morrison
President, Careers With Wings

Alan Sorkin
Chair, Vistage International

Duane Trombly
Principal, PointeBreak Solutions, Inc.

Maurice Wilson
Executive Director, National Veterans Transition Services

HONORARY BOARD/CO-FOUNDERS

Diane Cox
Co-Founder/Past Board Chair, Professional Coach and Development Consultant

Jeanette Day, Esq.
Co-Founder, Former Child Advocacy Attorney

Tony Hsu
Co-Founder/Past Treasurer, Founder/Chief Investment Officer, Alethea Capital Management,

LLC

Louarn Sorkin
Co-Founder, Board of Directors, San Diego Social Venture Partners

Kathryn Vaughn, Esq.
Co-Founder/Past President, Partner, Law Offices of Vaughn and Vaughn
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COLLEGE BOUND NARRATIVE

THE NEED

While there is some support for transitioning foster youth in the form of housing, college scholarships,
and other services, JIT mobilizes the community to fill the gaps of essential resources. We use a unique,
relationship-based, extended family model to meet the fundamental need for a consistent caring
connection that has eluded foster youth while in care and in transition.

Specifically, College Bound addresses the need for effective long-term support to navigate higher
education. We have attached the heartwarming story of a young woman, sponsored by your
foundation, whose introduction to Cal State San Marcos this past fall was clearly transformed from one
of angst, panic, and discouragement to one of stability, confidence and joy. Continuous opportunities for
positive relationships and networking connections are at the heart of what we do and also what sets us
apart from agencies that simply provide resources.

By supporting the youth through this holistic approach, we are able to achieve outcomes very different
from the sobering statistics on former foster youth in our state and nation, including one alarming
education statistic reported by The Cities, Counties and Schools (CCS) Partnership that found that 70% of
foster youth reported a desire to go to college, while only 10% attend and 1-3% graduate. The reported
graduation rates have improved slightly since that time (3-5%) with growing attention to the graduation
gap but they are still at unacceptable levels, which reinforces our commitment to our model.

THE COLLEGE BOUND MODEL

Through our College Bound program, the JIT extended family comes together to give transitioning foster
youth the resources and encouragement they need to begin a new life chapter as college students.
Specifically, JIT annually identifies 50-75 highly motivated former foster youth who have beaten the
odds by graduating high school and having earned acceptance to college. Historically, 15-20 of
participants are San Marcos residents and often enrolled in colleges located in San Marcos, California.
Since 2009, 81% of our College Bound participants have either graduated, gone on to graduate school,
or are still enrolled in school!

In 2015, as in years past, they will be connected with potential lifelong mentors and successful JIT
College Bound Alumni, receive laptops and printers, learn valuable tips on money management, legal
matters and practical purchases, and pair up with a JIT volunteer guide for a shopping spree to buy
essential dorm furnishings and school supplies. They will also be eligible to participate in other JIT
programs such as Financial Fitness, Emergency/Basic Needs, and Mentoring/Guidance.

The College Bound Class of 2015 will join other dedicated, deserving and grateful young people as we
fulfill the promise, not only to help get them started in higher education, but to also provide the
consistent, caring connection that will encourage them to stay in school and to graduate.
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TYPES OR AMOUNTS OF SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED

JIT’s College Bound program specifically addresses two key issues for transitioning foster youth who
have beaten the odds and earned acceptance into college, which are lack of resources and lack of family
support.

Each youth will receive items necessary for college success, including: laptops, software, printers, other
technology tools, basic school supplies (e.g., printer ink, paper, backpack, etc.), and gift cards to
purchase necessary items for dorm set-ups. The distribution of resources is accompanied by a
connection to a caring adult mentor, one who assists the youth with making prudent choices while
shopping for essentials and dorm furnishings. Often, these adults become invested in the youth and his
or her college success and, like a family, offer encouragement and additional resources to the youth
over the long-term.

At a cost of $1,200 per youth, the grant funds of $9,600 from the San Marcos Community Foundation
will enable Just in Time to meet the needs of 8 transitioning foster youth who reside in San Marcos.

OUTCOMES/MEASURES

College Bound participants are tracked and monitored throughout their time in higher education and
regular reports are developed based on the JIT Self-Sufficiency Scale. Success is evaluated based on
school enrollment over time, graduation or certification, and continuation on to graduate studies. The
data collected is done through staff contact, connections to JIT volunteers (Faculty), and mandatory
online surveys. For example, we tracked nearly 400 students who have been in the program since it
launched and know that 89% have either graduated or remain enrolled in school.

The long-term goal of all of JIT’s programs, including College Bound, is to give disadvantaged youth the
resources and community connections needed to help them become independent, self-sufficient,
thriving adults who ultimately will make meaningful contributions to our community.

Of all the students who received laptops and other support from the San Marcos Community
Foundation during the last grant period, 100% are still enrolled in school with the one exception of a
student who graduated.

CLAss OF 2015

Soon, JIT will begin the process of recruiting new College Bound participants. We invite members of the
San Marcos Community Foundation to participate in the process by reviewing the applicant essays to
get a powerful picture of the young people your funds help support. We also invite you to participate in
the College Bound event this June, including engaging as volunteer shoppers with the young people
from San Marcos whom the SDCF is supporting. We are confident that this first-hand experience will
clearly demonstrate that your investment is not only worthwhile but transformational.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Just in Time for Foster Youth

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Just in Time for Foster Youth, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Just in Time for Foster Youth as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Just in Time for Foster Youth’s 2013 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated March 5, 2014. In our opinion,

the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

San Diego, California
November 20, 2014
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ASSETS

2014 2013
Assets: (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 295,460 $ 228,590
Contributions receivable, net 149,094 205,773
Prepaid expenses and other assets 9,158 5,149
Furniture and equipment, net 873 4,502
TOTAL ASSETS $ 454,585 $ 444,014
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities: (Note 1)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 14,521 $ 6,807
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 15,095 14,929
Total Liabilities 29,616 21,736
Commitments (Note 5)
Net Assets: (Notes 1 and 4)
Unrestricted 173,512 306,033
Temporarily restricted 251,457 116,245
Total Net Assets 424,969 422,278
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 454,585 $ 444,014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Revenue and Support:

Contributions
Interest income
Net assets released from restrictions

Revenue and Support Before Special Events
Special Events:

Revenue

Less: Costs

Total Special Events, Net
Total Revenue and Support

Expenses:
Program Services

Supporting Services:
Fundraising
General and administrative
Total Supporting Services
Total Program and Supporting Services
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

$

2014

Temporarily 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
838,329 $ 305,560 $ 1,143,889 $ 1,101,852
236 - 236 305
170,348 (170,348) - R
1,008,913 135,212 1,144,125 1,102,157
270,949 - 270,949 519,366
(85,554) - (85,554) (292,923)
185,395 - 185,395 226,443
1,194,308 135,212 1,329,520 1,328,600
928,552 - 928,552 801,325
277,095 - 277,095 225,689
121,182 - 121,182 140,862
398,277 - 398,277 366,551
1,326,829 - 1,326,829 1,167,876
(132,521) 135,212 2,691 160,724
306,033 116,245 422,278 261,554
173,512 $ 251,457 $ 424,969 $ 422,278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Salaries and related benefits

Program awards

Professional services

Office expense

Contract labor

Promotional events

Printing

Insurance

Bank fees

Conference, meetings and training

Depreciation

Postage and shipping

Travel

Other expenses

Total Program and Supporting
Services Expenses

Program Services

Supporting Services

College Total

Basic My First Financial Bridge to Career Bound/ Contra Program Program General and 2014 2013

Needs Home Fitness Success Horizons Education Community Costa Other Administration Services Administrative Fundraising Total Total
44,229 $ 28,496 $ 28,048 $ 41,606 $ 19,550 $ 15487 $ 57,049 $ 20,454 13,845 $ 65,456 334,220 $ 50,104 $ 149,289 $ 533,613 $ 401,385
139,845 149,370 44,791 12,863 12,270 78,531 12,040 6,574 25,268 83 481,635 - - 481,635 481,305
- - - - - - - 177 - - 177 49,597 47,257 97,031 73,102
4,555 3,725 3,430 3,725 2,546 1,715 5,842 2,198 7,006 17,739 52,481 10,183 29,680 92,344 80,719
2,331 1,879 1,740 1,879 1,322 870 2,888 20,731 731 8,977 43,348 2,609 8,837 54,794 78,390
- - - - - 112 - 74 1,426 - 1,612 - 31,202 32,814 14,716
362 292 271 292 206 135 449 569 114 1,396 4,086 406 4,697 9,189 12,724
437 352 326 352 248 163 541 137 137 1,682 4,375 489 1,656 6,520 2,392
- - - - - - - - - - - 5,085 10 5,095 1,286
100 80 74 80 57 37 356 547 31 384 1,746 2,341 737 4,824 3,193
244 196 181 196 138 91 301 76 76 936 2,435 272 922 3,629 6,726
55 45 41 45 31 21 666 172 17 213 1,306 62 1,396 2,764 1,818
30 61 23 24 60 11 37 606 163 116 1,131 34 1,412 2,577 3,968
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6,152
192,188 $ 184,496 $ 78,925 $ 61,062 $ 36,428 $ 97,173  $ 80,169 $ 52,315 48,814 $ 96,982 928,552 $ 121,182  $ 277,095 $ 1,326,829 $ 1,167,876

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 2,691 $ 160,724
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 3,629 6,726
(Increase) Decrease in:
Contributions receivable, net 56,679 (163,773)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,009) 278
Inventory - 8,107
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,714 (5,179)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 166 2,014
Deferred revenue - (19,350)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 66,870 (10,453)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 66,870 (10,453)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 228,590 239,043
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 295,460 $ 228,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2B Page 20 of 26



Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:

Organization

Just in Time for Foster Youth (the “Organization”), a not-for-profit organization incorporated in the State of
California in 2006, envisions a future in which every youth leaving the foster care system has a community of
caring adults waiting for them when they turn eighteen and leave the foster care system.

The Organization believes consistent, long-term help from the heart is the foundation for the success of our
youth so that they can thrive and enjoy productive, satisfying lives.

The Organization mobilizes a caring community as an extended family for transitioning foster youth. This is
done through consistent relationships and emergency resources provided by individuals, agencies, businesses
and foundations that share the core values and mission.

While other programs might assist with support such as transitional housing or college scholarships, the
Organization looks where there is a critical need and fills that gap to ensure that motivated youth reach their
goal of self-sufficient adulthood. The Organization also fills the most important gap of all: connections to
caring adults, who then become a lifelong support system and the consistent community for the youth served.

Significant Accounting Policies

Method of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting which is in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and,
accordingly, reflects all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements present information regarding the financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net
assets.

= Unrestricted net assets — Net assets not subject to donor imposed stipulations

= Temporarily restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that will be met
by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor stipulated time restriction
ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

= Permanently restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations requiring that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization. The income from these assets is available for
either general operations or specific programs as specified by the donor.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Estimates

The preparation of a financial statement in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statement. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair
value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level 1
or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The Organization had no financial instruments at
June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Management believes that all contributions receivable were fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for
doubtful accounts was recorded as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if
the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature
of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets.

Capitalization and Depreciation

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $2,000 for furniture and equipment at cost, while
donations of furniture and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit
restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire furniture and equipment are
reported as restricted. Furniture and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful asset lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Office equipment and computers 5 years

Depreciation totaled $3,629 and $6,726 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capitalization and Depreciation (Continued)

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Upon sale or disposition of property or equipment,
the asset account is reduced by the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is reduced by the depreciation
taken prior to the sale. Any resultant gain or loss is then recorded as income or expense.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation totaling $15,096 and $14,929 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, is accrued
when earned and included in accrued payroll and related liabilities.

Donated Services, Support and Facilities

The Organization utilizes the services of many volunteers throughout the year. This contribution of services by
the volunteers is not recognized in the financial statements unless the services received (a) create or enhance
nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills which are provided by individuals possessing those skills and
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. The donated services for the year ended June
30, 2014 and 2013, did not meet the requirements above, therefore no amounts were recognized in the financial
statements.

The Organization received in-kind donations totaling $239,615 and $220,265 for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively, which have been recorded as contributions revenue and expenses in the statement of
activities.

The Organization occupies office facilities donated by Casey Family Programs. Donated facilities totaled
$51,116 and $51,116 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were recorded at fair value at
the date of donation, and have been included in contributions revenue and expenses in the statement of
activities.

Allocated Expenses

Expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting service classifications on the basis
of internal records and estimates made by the Organization’s management.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The Organization believes
that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax
positions that are material to the financial statement. The Organization is not a private foundation.

The Organization’s Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013,

2012 and 2011 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and State taxing authorities,
generally three to four years after the returns were filed.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts and money market funds which, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The
Organization believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net
asset class. This summarized information is for comparative purposes only, and accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013,
from which the summarized comparative information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments available
for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through November 20, 2014, which is the date the
financial statement is available for issuance, and concluded that there were no events or transactions that
needed to be disclosed.

Note 2 - Contributions Receivable:

Contributions receivable consist of the following at June 30:

2014 2013
Receivable due in less than one year $ 70,700 $ 127,250
Receivable due in one to five years 80,000 80,000
Less: Discounts to present value (1,606) (1,477)
Contributions Receivable, Net $ 149,094 $ 205,773

The contributions receivable have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of .88% and .66%
at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 3 - Furniture and Equipment:

Furniture and equipment consist of the following at June 30:

2014 013
Office equipment and computers $ 26,774 $ 26,774
Furniture and fixtures 1,554 1,554
Subtotal 28,328 28,328
Less: Accumulated depreciation (27,455) (23,826)
Furniture and Equipment, Net $ 873 $ 4,502
Note 4 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30:
2014 013
Coaching $ 139,987 $ -
Time Restriction 78,394 78,523
College Bound 25,086 27,436
Vocation 7,719 -
Computer/Tech 271 -
Career Horizons - 5,545
Contra Costa - 4,741
Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 251,457 $ 116,245

Net assets totaling $170,348 were released from donor restrictions due to the satisfaction of purpose or time
restrictions during the year ended June 30, 2014.

Note 5 - Commitments:

The Organization has a lease for office space that expires December 31, 2015. The landlord has provided the
space rent-free subject to the terms and conditions of the lease agreement. (Note 1)

The Organization leases office space under a lease agreement that expires March 31, 2016 with two, one-year
options to renew. Rent expense totaled $14,950 and $5,861 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and is included with office expenses on the statement of functional expenses. The related future
minimum lease payments are as follows:

Years Ended

June 30
2015 $ 18,075
2016 13,859
Total $ 31,934
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Invest in a Life, Transform a Community

A week before her move-in day at Cal State San Marcos, Erika was without
a place to stay. It reminded her of what she missed most while in foster
care, “a support system, anyone who would care and listen” and, as she
says, “just treat me like a living, breathing person.”

Fortunately, the Ace Scholars program at CSUSM connected Erika to Just in
Time’s College Bound program where her volunteer shopper, Pamela,
helped her purchase all the essential resources she would need for school.
But Erika was surprised when Pamela and her husband, David, also

opened their home to her until she could move into her dorm. “I’ve never

felt so welcomed, like | belonged there!”

When the time came, David did what most fathers do -helping Erika with a school
budget and moving her into her dorm room. And, once she was settled in, the three
of them enjoyed the Parent/Student dinner hosted by the university —a memory Erika will cherish forever.

Without family or community support, young adults like Erika are at risk of being homeless, unemployed, and
under-educated. All too often they are placed on the path towards life-long dependence or prison. 50% of former
foster youth become homeless within 18 months of emancipation.

While other programs might assist with support such as transitional housing or college scholarships, JIT fills the
most essential gaps that still remain, ensuring that motivated youth reach their goal of self-sufficient and satisfied
lives. In doing so, we also fill the most important gap of all: connections to caring adults who then become a
lifelong support system and the consistent community for the youth we serve.

Don Wells, Executive Director * don@)jitfosteryouth.org * (858) 663-2081

www.JitFosterYouth.org * P.O. Box 81292 San Diego, CA 92138 * All donations are tax d%ﬂ}gqﬂ[ﬁrgﬁg&a&g%ag)e g%%?%%48416
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Budget Worksheet

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project:
(example — 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax = $561.60)

Food cost for first 3 weeks of Senior Meals Program $2,325.00
$
1 Bverest ESRF2 2 door reach in freezer $3,205.00
S
Labor cost for 1 Senior Meals Cook at §13/hr for 1 month to launch program $2,080.00
5
$
$
§
5
$
$
Total budget for this PROJECT: $7,616.00__
Grant Request Amount: $7,610.08_

{Mini-grants nol to exceed 81,500, Regular grants not to exceed 310,000.)

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? No

Please list any other funding sources for this preject.

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).

$71,00000  (Name of source) _ Private Donors #* C
$6,754.00 (Name of source) County Employees CECO grant ¥ P
$50,000.00  (Name of source)_Cal Fresh Works grant ®k P
$ (Name of source) %
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PHOENIX FOODS USA YEAR ONE BUDGET San Marcos Senior Centar Kitchen

EXPENSES 2015 YTD 2015 EXPENSES

DVERHEAD Sanuary Fabraary March Jure Suty August  Septambes  Qctaber Rovamber  December
TRANS/ALUTC 5 K 200 2018 WC1S s 0015 20018 200 1,800 [TRANS/AUTO
SALARIES § 371318 37ini8 271516 $ 37i2 575018 S78C1S 575015 SISGIS 375018 5750 56,775 [SALARIES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 5 2311S 8821 1S K & 291 338018 138015 1380715 1.38C1S%  1L3E0 (S 1,380 13,626 IEMFLOYEE BENEFITS

TS/ 5 - 3,200
S £ {see busget} 5 $ i0C1S i0e} s 5 R b e1s RE 900 OFFICE isee budgey)
PROFESSIONAL SE! $ 6980 & 2B 25015 E 25015 EdE 5 5095 23S 3804 % 25 8,730 IPROFESSIONAL
WARKETING/PR/MEDIA 5 5,000 |MARKETING /PR/VEDIA
P EXPENSE TOTAL s $ 4833 § 4854 5§ 8353 5 3 § 7680 £ 28BC 5 FEB0 S 7680 S & 1680 % 91,090 JOP EXPENSE TOTAL
CAPITAL/EGUIPMENT ONE TIME CAPITAL/EQUIPMENT ONE TIME
VALK COOLER BURDCUT 5 30,000 $ 30000 IWALKIN COCLER BUILDCLUT
EQUIPMENTITCREM 5 2383818 -1 5 -1 -1 -is B .15 -8 -1$  Z36SEEQUEFMENT
OFFICE FURN/COMPUTER S 4500 $ 4,500

$ 53,658 CAPITAL EXPENSE

PROGRAM COSTS

SROERAV: RELATED SALA R R R s 3712 3 s 5750 $ 58775
[LAEOR { i 1 15 43571 $ 5 4357 S 41,013 [LABOR 1
EMPLOVEC BENEF!TS S 291 5 @3y § 881 § 1 H s 1,474 <
MATERIALE/PACKAGING e s 1000 [3 MATERIALS /P ACRAGING.
5GO0 CC5T-FASD heals S 10 S eon H H FODD COST-FASD Meats
FO0G < o Meais s 3317 [ B s[¢ FOOD COST-Senior Mezts
TOTAL S 460415 AB031S 460415 13,641 H $ 19,546 (S TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS

5 TOTAL EXPENSES
REVENUES REVENUES

lanusry  Februsty  March Aprit Jine September  Cetobier  Nevernber  Decernber

Bens paic by JGFP S 3007$ RO0| S 200 < S 3018 360[5 30015 3000S 2,700 JRentpaid oy IGET
% revense from JGiP S - S 3001 30li woo < % S S 701§ 1000 E  TEOD I% reverue from JGFF
VEALS FASDH 5 S 100015 Lo00(f 2000 < S 4000(5  6OCC|5  GDO0CIS 800 34,000 [MEALS FASTY
Serior Meai Program® - S $ 778005 775015 7,750 3 S B3Ib}Ss RSl seiz|¢ gai3 74,430 [Seniar Mesl Frogram ™~
ROCUCTS™ " S B S 120015 180015 1,806 |% 1,800 7,800 |PRODUCTS "~
CONSTRUCTION REPAVIMENT H EE 30,000 |CONSTRUCTION REPAYMENT
TOTAL 5 .13 -1s ~15 1038015 10,350 | $811550 1% 11,550 1S X4,5751% 157751 1657515 1696316 500135 154,530 |TOTAL REVENUES

[WEBSITE-DONATIONS/FUNDRAISING | S

S 73000 ;WEBSITE»BGNAT\UNS/FUNURAISING

TOTAL EXPENSES MINUS REVENUE S {154,662} TOTAL EXPENSES MINUS REVENGE
SECURED GRANTS AND FUNOING § 71,000 SECURED GRANTS AND FUNDING
GRANT MONIES/DONATIONS NEEDED S (83.662} GRANT MONIES/DONATIONS NEEDED
NOTES

s wifl be substzntially effset oy fosd donations and is currently isted 23 15%. .
© 4o start 21 250 mezls pe | 500/ week for Morsths § B 6, 1000/werk for Manths 7 & 8, 1500/ week for Mant

ugek fo

per meai
~*Senior Meat Feeding Progran at §7.75/meal average for 50 per Gay Mondsy-Fridasy with anticipated grows
“*Pradiction of "Super Sauce”, suintionaly enhanzad Tomato Sauee. TS, Depandent an donated ingredients.

4 Frogucts will pay rent ta Sheen:

¢ jitenen rental space and will return 10% of ali reverue 1o FFUSA fram prodact sales 8t farmer s markets The manthly sgles

~eftect 10% of anticoared sales
.ekoris for 2

Tris coula intres

me atafl at $13/hr beginning 8t the stan o
sre for healsh care and FICA/SS!

noludes packaging costs for restued fane meals to be donasied ) no charge w0 paringr pgencies TBD.

ce second quarter.

pioyee bene

YEAR ONE GOALS

per Saice procuced and 5o

GOALS BY QUARTER 15T QUARTER ATH QUARTER

£ASD MEALS W& D RS
ATED MEALS = 1000

EENIOR WEALS 3,700

SUPER SAUCE 800

There 1s substantial adeis 25, Baked Boods, ang the deveiopment of Bentc Bos Meass for takeout snd name deivery

adgitienal paten sources sre for miimady prace far instituti scing pregram e, ond the hive.

Cuinary Training
To be reimbursed by Oty of San Marces gt some future paint

ot shown are Drogram custs ant reverues om 1y

Progeam tantatively siates for g guarter of vear o

PFUSA will generate ait of its first year operating budget thraugh revenue programs.

$T1,000 donation Irem grivaie denors in Decernner 2014
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Month 1
Legal $ 1,000.00
Exceptional Solutions S 4,980.00
HR services S 1,000.00 S 250.00 monthly
TOTAL S 6,980.00

Exceptional Solutions is a Consultantcy Service for nonprofits and has been instrumental in managing the legat an

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2C Page 5 of 13



OFFICE COSTS BREAKDOWN

Computers 51,500.00

Furniture*® $750.00

Software $1,250.00 includes Nutritional Analysis Software
Supplies $250.00 S 100.00 monthly
Miscellaneous $250.00

TOTAL $4,0060.060

*We have found a nonprofit agency that will donate all the office furniture for minimal exchange feesand w

*Meal production to start at 250/meals per week for October, 500/week for November through December,
and April, and 2000/week from May to September. Based on reimbursement of 51 per meal.
**production of "Super Sauce”, nutritionally enhanced Tomato Sauce. TBD. Dependent on sourcing ingredi
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REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE
2506
CINCINNAT OH 45201

PHOENIX FOODS USA INC
3032 AVENIDA CHRISTINA
z Ch 92002

“
s
I
)

atus:

s e o
[
4 <
o ¥

Effective Date of Exemption:
January 2, 4
tribubion

Dear Applicant:

We are pleassd to inform you that upon review of vour application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal ineome taw
under section 501(c} {3} of the Internal Eevenue Code. C

d@ducurﬂv under section 170 of the Code. You are alsoc

ontributions to vou are
o ified to i

ible bequests, devises, transfers or gifte under section 205%, 2108

e Code . al this letter could i

regarding your exempt

p reselve any gquestions
vou should keep it in vour permanent records

:ction 501 {(ci (3] of the Code are furt
ities or pri

cempl undsy

ey clasgil

ate foundations. We determined that vou are

a public charity under the Code section{s) listed in the heading of this
letter.

information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
go to w*iw.iLm.gov;chcmz ties. Enter "43221-
tion 4221-PC, Compliance i
your recordkeeping,

Croin aseaxych ba
(o} {3} Public Chavities,
sclosure reguirements.

e
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Program Narrative for Phoenix Foods USA

ngram Summar Y. Phoenix Foods USA’s (FFUSA) mission is to reclaim healthy food that would
otherwise go to waste, and use it to both strengthen the local food economy, and empower, nourish and
engage the community. We aim o bridge the gap between wasted food and hunger in San Diego by rescuing
and porchasing cosmetically imperfect food from grocery stores, wholesalers, and farmers, and transforming
it into meals and products that not only feed, but also improve the health of vulnerable populations. This food
processing will be the base for our culinary job-training program, which will help empower unemployed
individuals to become productive and skilled members in their community. We will plan to launch our
operation this spring in the San Marcos Senior Center Kitchen with a focus on nutrition and meal services to
serve growing needs among older adults. At this site we will recover cosmetically imperfect food, prepare
nutritious meals for senior meal programs and prepare meals and products to be distributed at food banks. In
our pilot year we will cut down on our region’s rampant food waste while providing 10,100 meals for
seniors i San Marcos and 34,000 meals for food bank clients throughout North County San Diego.

Grant funds will be used for launch costs associated with starting kitchen operations, including industrial
kitchen equipment, labor and food costs. Currently the San Marcos Senior Center Kitchen has limited
capacity for large-scale meal production, with limited refrigeration. With the San Marcos Community
Foundation funds we will purchase a larger refrigerator, and cover initial startup costs associate with labor
and food. With this $7610 grant we will be able to scale our operations and prepare more meals for hungry
San Diegans and San Marcos seniors.

About Phoenix Foods USA: While we arc a newly launched organization, our team’s past
endeavors, our partnerships and our experienced board members position PFUSA to address San Diego’s
most pressing challenges of diet related disease, food waste and hunger. PFUSA is building on the
experience of our team to operate efficient and health conscious food services. Founder and Executive
Director, Chuck Samuelson, has 45 years experience as chef and restaurateur, and most recently was the
Senior Manager of Food Services for Stone Brewing Company. We are also fortunate to have Robert Egger,
founder of DC Central Kitchen and LA Kitchen, two organizations that pioneered this model, mentoring
PFUSA i its pilot year and serving on its Board of Directors. A SMCF Grant of $7000 is an opportunity to
invest in a truly innovative project that fulfills the needs of San Diego residents as well as expands the
capacity of other social service agencies.

The Need:

Seniors: San Diego is home to a rapidly growing senior population on fixed incomes who ofien face difficult
choices whether to pay for food or medicines. Among seniors in San Diego, 25% have diabetes, 22% are
classified as obese, and 18% live with cardiovascular disease.! These conditions can often be prevented or
reversed by improved diet and exercise. However, the majority of meals currently offered to seniors through
government programs or food assistance do not meet clients’ health, dietary, or cultural needs. Most contract
meal programs are classified as “American Meals,” which favor processed foods, and limited fresh fruits and
vegetables. While attendance and participation in programs at senior centers such as San Marcos’s are rising,
semior meal programs have seen lower attendance over the years as a more health-conscious elderly
generation looks for other options. Lack of savings, rising healthcare costs, and financial circumstances will
force tomorrow’s seniors to participate in federal meal programs at higher levels. At the same time, they will
demand better quality food that is fresh, and nutritious.

Food Waste: California’s farmland spans 25 million acres, and produces nearly half of the nation’s fiuits,
vegetables, and nuts, but millions of tons of the state’s edible produce never make it to the market. In fact
40% of all edible food goes to waste, costing more than $163 billion each year.? Half of that waste is fresh
fruit and vegetables that have cosmetic imperfections or lack commercial demand in the market. From fruits
that are too ripe to sell, to vegetables with superficial blemishes, or eggs that are too big or too small to fit
supermarket standards, there is a tremendous amount of food that is highly nutritions, bat going to waste
nonetheless. With 2 smarter food recovery network, we can divert the fresh produce from landfills to
stomachs.

1 Center for Disease Control
? Gunders, Dana. Wasted Issue Paper. Natural Resource Defense Council, 2012,
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Hunger: Hunger is a critical issue throughout the United States and locally in San Diego County, where 1 in
6 people are food insecure’. That means 460,000 individuals in San Diege County, including more than
160,000 children, are unsure where their next meal will come from. Our program will serve clients of the
Feeding America San Diego food bank. Among these clients nearly half of all households lack health
insurance of any kind (including Medicaid) and a quarter report having a family member in poor health.

Measurable Objectives: A grant of $7000 from the San Marcos Community Foundation will
allow us to purchase the necessary equipment and food to begin operations at the San Marcos Senior Center
Kitchen. Once this space is outfitted with the appropriate equipment we will:

e Improve and expand the meal services to serve growing health needs amongst older adults,
beginning with the San Marcos Senior Center. PFUSA plans to provide a café style option which offers a
menu of items from which seniors can choose based on their health and dietary preferences. Gur client-
choice driven menu will generate revenue for our programs, while improving the health of the senior
population. These healthy meals will focus on nutritious ingredients, seasonal produce, and ethnically diverse
cuisines. San Marcos Senior Center currently provides meals to 50 seniors each day, but with improved menu
and client choice we belicve we can increase this number to 100-150 meals a day.

° Reduce food waste and support regional farmers by collecting and purchasing for reduced rates
83001bs of fruits and vegetables annually that are unmarketable due to cosmetic issues or lack of commercial
demand. This ‘seconds’ purchasing will allow farmers to make a profit on produce they would otherwise
discard.

° Provide nutritious meals to food-insecure families in North County San Diego. Our primary partner
in this work is Feeding America San Diego food bank (FASD), who will assist in rescning food from grocery
stores and wholesalers, and then distributing prepared foods to hungry families. Qur kitchen adds an
additional processing step to the waditional food bank model, whereby FASD transports fresh ingredients to
our kitchen, where it is processed into 2000 frozen meals a week, and then distributed to their clients through
the Mobile Pantry Program. This food processing is criteal in reducing food waste and scaling capacity of
hunger relief as currently FASD throws away 10% of food donations that are either close to expiration, frozen
in sizable quantities, or have cosmetic imperfections. In our pilot year we will produce 34,000 nutritious
meals for food bank clients.

Timeline: After the Request for Proposals process is completed for the Senior Center in late January, we
hope to have access to the kitchen starting in March. After basic equipment and furnishings are purchased and
instailed we plan to begin production of lunches for the senior center in late March, By the suramer we expect
to be producing at least 500 meals a week for Feeding America San Diego. We will phase in our culinary
job-training program in late 2015.

Methods: The heart of PFUSA is its production kitchen, Here we will recover cosmetically imperfect
food from farmers and wholesalers, prepare meals and products to be distributed at food banks, and prepare
nufritious meals for senior lunch programs. We will both pick up and receive deliveries from farmers and
wholesalers of fresh produce. Two staff with the help of volunteers will prepare meals for the San Marcos
senior program. We will host larger volunteer groups on the weekends to assist in the preparation of meals
for FASD. Additionally, we will partner with Produce Good and The Society of St. Andrew, two gleaning
organizations that work with a network of volunieers to glean produce from farmers and wholesalers.

Evaluation: we will work with San Marcos Senior Center staff to perform client evaluations to evaluate
dietary preferences, health improvements and program feedback. These client interviews will be compiled
guarterly and synthesized into a year-end report to be reviewed by our Board and then help us improve the
client experience. For meals for food insecure families, FASD will track individuals served and perform
client evaluations, as agreed upon in our Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with FASD.

Sus&aéﬁabﬂﬁty: PFUSA is a unique non-profit in its commitment to social enterprise and financial
sustainability. In our pilot year we will generate 50% of our total annual budget through the revenue from
meals and products. This revenue is through a processing fee to be paid by FASD (see attached MOU), and
government reimbursements to be paid by Aging and Independent Services for senior meals. Our revenue-
generating activities allow us to direct donor funds solely towards program costs, create good jobs, and be
decisive in directing our own resources when new needs and opportunities arise. We have currently secured
$71 000 in initial investments and we are actively seeking out other grant and donor opportunities.

3 San Diego Hunger Coalition
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Short Form

~m 390-EZ

of the Treasury
intemal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax |
Under section 501{c}, 527, or 4847(a){1} of the Internat Revenue Code {except private foundations) |

¥ Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
b Information about Form S90-EZ and is instructions is at www.irs.goviforma20.

| omBNo. 1545-1150

A For the 2014 calendar year, or lax year hegiming » 2014, and endin
B Check it applcable: [+ N‘ame afargamzzmgn — D Employer Identification number
[}Adx#essd’mge ‘g’é“"f"f//m“:: r”é ,_; \.!,‘ ﬁ-/t_w j’“’ - f)f?o" f\g_)
{1 name change Number ands-tmet(orPO box,  rat is not deiwefe—dtostreet address) Foom/sulte | E Telsphone number
L1 westeos vomum ] oF o2 e A%.. FEAIB A ‘!5;5{'"77}“* és!(‘;_gi’;jwifﬁ’?%
B Final retumftenminated Chy or town, stateorprovmce,' urtny, apd ZIP or foreign postal code F Group Exemption

Amended refum {" AL AD #.13 G aood
{71 sppiication pending =201 0 - i Nurmber b

G Accounting Method: [ Cash ] Acorual  Other (specify) B

I Websile: Uil ghoaiay Eoods s, ora
7

4 Tax-exempt stabus {check only one) — [ sotiomy  [15010) (

34 (ingentnoy L l4s4r@myor Dlsor

H Check B [_1if the organization is not

required to attach Schedule B
Form 980, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

K Form of organization: @Corporaﬁon Tl rrust 1 Association ] Other

L. Add lines 5k, 6c, and 7b to line 9 1o determine gross receipts. If gross receipls are $200,000 or more, or If total assets

> s

{Part i, column (B) below) are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ .

Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part [
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any questioninthisPartt . . . . .

o

1  Confributions, gifts, grants, and similar amnounts received . 1 T oo, o0
2 Program sevice revenus including government fees and cnntracts 2 5
3 Membership dues and assessments . e e e e e e e 31
4 Investmentincome . . . e e e e e 41
5a Gross amount from sale of assets other than inventory Sa |
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses . . B
o Gain or {foss) from sale of assets other than inventory (Subtract ime Sb from line 5a} .
& Gaming and fundraising events
a Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G #f greater than
2 $15,000) . . | 6a |
& b Gross income from fundrarstng events (not mciudmg $ of contributions
E from fundraising evenis reported on fine 1} (attach Schedule G ¥ the
sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) . &b

¢ Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising evenls &c
d Net income or {loss) from gaming and ftmdraismg events (add hnes 6a and 6b and sublract
inefcy . . . e e e e
Ta Gross sales of ;nventary, 1653 retums and allowances . Ta
Less: cost of goods sold 7o

¢ Gross profit or {foss} from sales of mventory (5ubtract ine 7b frcsm ﬁne 7a)
&  Other revenue {describe in Schedule O) .
9  Tolal revenus. Addlines 1,2, 3, 4, 5¢, 66, 7¢, anci 8

10 Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule Q)
1§ Benefits paid fo or for membars .
@ |42 Salaries, other compensation, and emplcyea beneﬁts . .
2 18 Professional fess and other payments 1o independent contractors .
§, 14 Cccupancy, rent, uillities, and raintenance
& 15  Printing, publications, postage, and shipping .
18  Other expenses (describe in Schedule O) -
17  Tolal expenses. Add lines 10 through 16 . . . B
o« | 18 Excess or {deficit) for the vear (Subtract line 17 from isne 9) ..
?g 19  Net assels or fund balances at beginning of year (from tine 27, ca{umn (A)) {must agree w:ih
g% end-of-year figure reported on prior year's return) .
% 120 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) ..
Z |9y Net assels or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through 20 . b

For Paperwork Reduction Act Nogics, sac the separate instructions. Cat. No. 106421

Form 996—@2 2014}
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Form 880-EZ (2014)

Page 2

Balance Sheets (see the instructions for Part It}
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any guestion in this Part i . .

0

{A} Beginning of year

Cash, savings, and investiments A.00

{8} End of year

L and and buildings .

Other assets (describe in Soheduie O)

Total gssels .

Totsl Habilities (dsscnbs in Sx:hedule O)

pet assets or fund balances (ine 27 of column (B) must agres w:th !me 21}

22
23
24
25
26
27

2
23
24
25
26
27

Pe

Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see the insbuctions for Part Bj)
- £

Check if the organization used Schedule O to respand to any questson in this Part 1l

What Is the organization’s primary exempt purpose? G Rl e

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each &f its three largest program services,
as measured by expenses. in a clear and concise manner, describe the seyvices provided, the number of
persans beneﬁted and other relsvant information for each program title.

{Requived for section
501{e)3) and 501(cHS)
organizations; optional for
others.}

(Crants A Y ¥ ihis amount includes foreigr grants, check hers . = ] |28 /
23 N
{Grants $ } ¥ this amount includes foreign grants, check here . B L1 20
30
{Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign granis, checichere . B 1 130s
31 Other program services (describe in Schedule O} . -
{Granis § y i this amount includes fcreagn gran&, check here . > 1 |3ta
32 Total program service expenses {(add fines 28a through 314} . B oIge | fuot, B4,

List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Hey Employees (ist each one even if nc’: compﬁns«’iedmsae the mstructlons for Part !V)

Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any guestion in this Part W . . .
fi} Average {c} Reporiable {5} Haalth bensfits,
N campensalion contributions 1o employes| {e) Estimated amuunt of
{8} Name and title de*;";:dﬁj week . |Forms W-211099-MISC)|  benet plans, and other compsnsation
Gf mot paid, ender ~0-) | defered compensation
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Grant Cover Page

(Choose one) [ | MINI-GRANT

(Choose one) X REGULAR GRANT

Project Name: Solutions Case Management
Date Submitted: 1/05/15

Total # of people served: 484

Total # of San Marcos
residents served: 24

Amount
Requested: $10,000

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website

Solutions for Change, Inc.
722 W. California Avenue
Vista, CA 92083
www.solutionsforchange.org

Contact Person — Name, Title & Phone, email

Tammy Megison

Executive Vice-President

(760) 941-6545 ext. 304
tammy(@solutionsforchange.org

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant):

Solutions for Change is seeking a grant to support our Solutions Case Management program, the program at the
heart of our families’ 1,000-day journey out of homelessness. The grant will fund the supportive services
provided by our highly skilled corps of coaches who provide constant mentoring and follow a highly
individualized plan crafted to address each individual’s specific issues and needs. That plan includes classes
addressing substance abuse patterns, mental health issues, histories of violence and trauma and all other barriers
to self-reliance.

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community:

We believe the critical issue of our time in this region is family homelessness. Locally, the San Diego Regional
Task Force on the Homeless reports there are more than 2,000 homeless children and their parents in San Diego
County. The community you serve in San Marcos is sadly not immune to this plight. A good number of the
families we serve come from within the San Marcos city limits. 2/3 of those are children, accompanying their
parents from shelter to shelter, or living out of their cars, rarely knowing where their next meal will come from.
These families represent critical members of our North County community - flung into homelessness by drug
addiction, domestic violence, illness, or a perfect storm of events. Addressing these critical issues for the most
vulnerable families in San Marcos is essential for our community. Please join us in investing in their futures
and creating a community we can all be proud of.

Please attach the following items.
Both Mini-Grant & Regular:
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet)

Expected date project will begin/end: 7/01/15
Date by which funds will be expended: 6/30/16

Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit
Federal & State Tax ID numbers
Board of Directors listing with affiliations

Signature of President or Authorized Officer

kv

Regular Grants Only:
B y Tammy Megison, Executive Vice-President 1/5/15

Name, Title Date

a. 1-2 page narrative
b. First 2 pages of Federal 990

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including
any management letters associated with Audit.

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on
Application

e. Optional: letters of support

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to:

San Marcos Community Foundation

c/o City of San Marcos

1 Civic Center Drive

San Marcos, CA 92069

Email (PDF Format): wkaserman(@san-marcos.net
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Wages and salaries

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

Budget Worksheet

$336.,070

(1) Director of Programs @ 20% FTE
(1) Associate Director @ 50% FTE
(1) Director of Social Enterprises @ 50% FTE
(7) Case Managers @ 100% FTE
Personnel benefits @ 30%

$100,821

Materials and supplies

$7,500

Program expenses and evaluation

Rent and utilities

Insurance

Mileage

Incentives and Special Events

Indirect costs @ 15%

$66.,659

Total Budget for this PROJECT:

Grant Request Amount:

Is this a challenge grant? NO

Please list any other funding sources for this project.

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).

$90.000

Genentech Foundation

Could it be? N/A

$511,049

$10,000

*%

$66.000

Forte for Kids

*%

$50,000

Isbrandt Family Trust

*%

$44.000

Alliance Healthcare Foundation

*%

$42,000

San Diego Shelter + Care

*%

$35,000

Diane and Bruce Halle Foundation

*%

$28,500

Welk Family Foundation

%%

$25,000

Bob Baker Toyota

%%

$21,000

Tri-City Healthcare Foundation

*%

$10,000

Stein Family Foundation

*%

$100,000

Donations and Contributions (2014-2015)

*%

glolololololo lOoIlo 16 10
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Solutions for Change

Solutions for Change
Organizational Budget (2015)

Income

Fundraising
Foundations

Public Funds
Donations

Developer Fee
Property Management
Rent

Laundry & Vending
Damages & Cleaning Fees
NSF & Late Charges
Vacancy

Social Enterprise

$1,150,000

$545,000
$366,552
$210,481
$122,139
$116,121
$360,645

$7,000

$2,625

$1,750
-$18,032
$187,000

Total Income

Expenses

Salaries

Benefits

Payroll Taxes

Workers Comp

Meetings, Training & Travel
Farm Expense

Advertising

Fundraising Expense
Professional Fees

Property and Liability Insurance
Rent

Repairs/Maintenance
Telephone/Communications
Utilities

Supplies

Dues/Subscriptions
Furniture/Equipment

IT

Payroll Expense

Interest

Taxes, license, permits & fees

$3,051,281

$1,672,289

$87,631
$141,964
$95,489
$45,000
$86,551
$52,000
$375,000
$66,617
$93,000
$104,388
$121,000
$65,000
$165,000
$85,440
$6,000
S0
$48,000
$4,000
$134,090
$65,000

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income
Sale 1130 Melrose net
Pledges Receivable
Other Costs
Replacement Reserves
Principal Payments
Farm Capital Improvements

$3,513,459

-5462,178
$118,000
$893,400

-$40,033
-$258,889
-$250,000

Net Cash Flow

S0
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INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICEH DEPARTMENT OF TEE TERASURY
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINMATI, OH 45201

Employer Identification Number:

sace: APR 13 200% 33-0502517

DLN: .
17053087745074
NORTH COUMNTY SCLUTIONS FOR CHAHGE Contact Person:
IHc THOMAS C HKOESTER IG# 31115
E%0 E VISTA WAY Contact Telephonse Numbsr:
VISTA, CA 92084 {877} B25-5500

Public Charity Status:
170{b) (1} (&) {v1)

Deax Applicant:

Our letter dated June 2000, stated you would be exempt from Federal
income tax under section 501{c) {3} of the Internal Revenue Code, and ¥ou wouid
be treated as a public charity during an advance ruling peried.

Based on our records and on the information you submitted, we are pleased to
confirm that you are exempt under section 501{c} (3} of the Code, and you are
classified as a public charity under the Code section listed in the heading of

this letter.
Fublication 557, Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, provides detailed
information about your rights and responsibilities as an exempt crganization.

You may request a copy by calling the tcll-free number for forms,
(8007 829-3676. Information is also azvailable on our Internset Web Site at

www . 1lrs.gov.

If you have general questions about exempt organizaticns, please call cur
toli-fres number shown in the heading bebtween 8:00 a.m. - £:30 p.m. Hastern

time.
Please keep this letter in your permaznent receords.

Sincerely vours,

Lois G. Lerner
Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Letter 1050 {DQ/CGE)
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD
PG BOX 1286

RANCHO CORDOVA CA 95741-1286

In reply refer to
755:6 tJCA

July 18, . 2000

NORTH COUNTY SOLUTIDONS FOR CHANGE INE
245 BLOCKTON RD T
VISTA CA 92083-7671

Purpose . ¢t CHARITABLE
Code Section @ 23701d
Form of Organization t Corporation
Accounting Period Ending: Decamber 31
Organization Number : 2048058

You are axempt from state franchise or income tax under the section of
the Revenue and Taxation Code indicated above,

This decisjion is based on infermation vou submitted and assumes that
vour present operations continue unchanged or conform to those proposed
in vour application. Any change in operation, character, or purpose of
the organization must be raeported immediately to this office so that we
mav determine the effect on your exampt status. Any change of name or
address must also be reported,

In the event of a change in relevant statutary, administrative, Jjudicial
case law, a change in federal interpretation of federal law in cases
where our opinion is hased upon such an interpretation, or a change in
the material facts or circumstances relating to wvour application upan
which this opinion is based; this opinion mav no longer he applicable.
It is vour responsibility to be aware of these changes should they occur.
This paragraph constitutes written advice, other than a chief caunsel
ruling, within the meaning of Revenue and Taxation Code Section

21012(a)(2).

You mav he required to file Form 199 (Exempt Organization Annual
Informatian Return) on ar before the 1B5th day of the 5th month (4 1/2
months) after the close of vour accounting period, Please see annual
instructions with forms for requirements.

Yau are not required to file state franchise or incaome tax returns
unless vou have income subject to the unrelated business income tax
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July 18, 2000

NORTH COUNTY SOLUTIONS FOR CHAMNGE, INC.
ENTITY ID : 2048058

Paga 2

under Section 23731 of the Code. In this event, you are required to
file Form 109 (Exempt Drganization Business Income Tax Return) by the
15th day of the B5th month (4 1/2 months) after the close of your annual
accounting period,

Please note that an exemption from federal income or other taxes and
other state taxes redquires separate applications.

A copy uf this letter has heen sent to the Registry of Charitable Trusts.

J AMAYA

EXEMPT ORGANIZATION SECTION
PROCESSING SERVICES BUREAU
TELEPHONE (9162 845-6644

.EO ¢
CC :LAWRENCE J KAPLAN
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COMMUNITY
LEADERSHIP TEAM

CHAIRMAN
MARK KING, CEO & PRESIDENT
TaylorMade Golf Company

SAM ABED, MAYOR
City of Escondido

TONY BARON, DIRECTOR
Azusa Pacific University

BOBBI DEPORTER, PRESIDENT
Quantum Learning Network

JIM DESMOND, MAYOR
City of San Marcos

GLORIA FOOTE, PARTNER
Financial Focus

MATT HALL, MAYOR
City of Carlsbad

REV. TED HAMILTON, SENIOR PASTOR

New Life Presbyterian Church

DARRELL ISSA, CONGRESSMAN
a9™ Congressional District

TERESA MOSELEY, VICE PRESIDENT

Wells Fargo Bank

REV. MICHAEL RATAJCZAK, PASTOR
St. Thomas More Catholic Church

JUDY RITTER, MAYOR
City of Vista

SANDRA SHUDA, VP of HR
Watkins Manufacturing Corp.

JIM WOOD, MAYOR
City of Oceanside

Initiative to Solve Family Homelessness

1,000 Days to a Permanent Solution * One Family * One Community at a Time

2015 Board of Directors

DUNCAN WALLACE
Chairman
Owner, Kand Medical

GENE FORD
Board Treasurer
Retired, Bank Executive

JERRY WATSON
Board Secretary
Retired, Communication Specialist

WALTER KUCHINSKY
Industrial Mechanic, Watkins Manufacturing Corporation

SANDRA SHUDA
Vice President of People Strategy & Services,
Watkins Manufacturing Corporation

CHRIS SMITH
Director, St. Thomas More Catholic Church
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Solutions for Change

Solutions for Change
Regular Grant Request to the San Marcos
Community Foundation

Solutions for Change is a local nonprofit with 15 years of experience

solving family homelessness in San Diego County. Since its founding in 1999, Solutions

has built an innovative model for solving family homelessness that differs dramatically from the
multitude of strategies employed in the region - the traditional approaches of temporary shelters
and the occasional meal that often perpetuate dependence on support with limited focus on
breaking the causal cycle of homelessness.

At Solutions for Change, we look at things differently. Our focus is assisting the whole individual
and solving the whole problem. We know homelessness is not just about nutrition; not just
about mental health; and, not just about having a roof over one’s head. It is about supportive
housing, along with a wealth of supportive services that will lead our families out of
homelessness permanently.

Solutions for Change does this through a 1,000-day partnership with our homeless men and
women. The model, known as the Solutions University, blends affordable housing, educational
opportunities, employment training and health-related solutions all within one cohesive strategic
partnership that aims to solve family homelessness permanently.

On any given day, more than 130 families and 300 children are participating in our programs
(=500 individuals). They come to us from a variety of North County communities — with a
considerable number hailing from within the San Marcos city limits. Some represent a second or
third generation of homelessness, held captive by lack of education and opportunity. Others are
war veterans (increasingly women) who return wounded in many ways and who are struggling
to exist in a world very different from the one they’ve just exited. And still others are people
whose seemingly-solid middle or lower-middle class existence was suddenly torn from them by
an unforeseen “perfect storm” of circumstances that may include death or disability of a spouse,
divorce or separation, major iliness or injury, spousal abuse, unemployment, birth of a special
needs child, loss of support from extended family, inability to find comparably-priced housing
after termination of a lease, and many other vicissitudes.

These circumstances are often coupled with other complex, underlying issues. Last year's
survey showed 39% of our residents suffered from some kind of substance abuse; 36% fled
domestic violence; 25% experience mental illness; 16% have a physical disability; and, 1% have
a learning disability. These individuals are looking for a way out of the cycle of poverty.

722 West California Avenue | Vista, California 92083 | 760.941.6545 | wwwGHa Ui/ (tenn 2D Gager8)of 54



These complex issues are met head-on through our Solutions Case Management program.
These are the supportive services provided by our highly skilled corps of coaches who provide
constant mentoring throughout the program, guiding each individual to their most productive,
independent life. They follow a highly individualized plan crafted to address each individual’s
specific issues and needs. That plan includes classes addressing substance abuse patterns,
mental health issues, histories of violence and trauma and all other barriers to self-reliance.
Children are provided case management as well and enrolled in a variety of programs that help
them with coping skills, self-esteem building, anger management and overall social skills — all
culminating in a comprehensive suite of services that sets our children up for the long-term
success they so deserve.

These programs are carried out at our core facility, a 32,000 square foot complex on two acres
in Vista, where we have 33 apartments, classrooms, a counseling center, and our administrative
facilities. We have 133 Solutions-owned-and-operated affordable housing located throughout
North San Diego County, with 77 new units on the horizon for 2015.

Case management is provided under the direction of Executive Vice-President, Tammy
Megison, who directs all programs at the agency. For 23 years, Tammy Megison has served in
executive level management positions responsible for all facets of non-profit administration and
operations. She oversees Solutions’ professional corps of case managers, who cumulatively
have decades of experience and Master’s level training within the field. They bring to Solutions
expertise with family therapy, women'’s issues, and the unique needs of military families, as well
as vast experience with the substance abuse and mental health challenges within our complex
population.

For our families, these supports help to unravel the deep physical, psychological and emotional
damage that often result from the circumstances under which they’'ve lived. The one-on-one
guidance makes sure that any issues that arise are immediately addressed and worked on,
while ensuring that families feel supported throughout their very difficult journey out of
homelessness.

Following the completion of the program, families are armed with the skills, knowledge and
resources they require to establish themselves as self-sufficient, stable members of the
community. The program is highly successful, with 76% of the families entering our Intake and
Access Center able to progress to our on-campus transitional housing (up from 65% several
years ago). From there, 93% cumulatively for the last three years have graduated. These
families exit with stable housing, $2,000 in savings, and the knowledge needed for long-term
resilience.

If you agree that our goals and yours are aligned, we would welcome the opportunity to partner,
once more, with the San Marcos Community Foundation to benefit the homeless families of San
Marcos. Solutions for Change is grateful to the San Marcos Community Foundation for its past
support and its consideration of this request. We welcome any inquiries and look forward to a
successful, ongoing partnership benefitting families in need and all of San Marcos.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Oy

Leafe Cole, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Consolidated Statements of Activities

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses - 2013
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses - 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Supplementary Information:
Supplementary Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position - 2013
Supplementary Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position - 2012
Supplementary Consolidating Schedule of Activities - 2013
Supplementary Consolidating Schedule of Activities - 2012

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
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in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
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Steven W. Northcote, C.P.A.
Michael S. Schreibman, C.P.A.

Michael J. Zizzi, C.P.A.

Julie A. Firl, C.P.A.

Nicholas M. Gines, C.P.A.
LCaf@*' COIC, LLP Members
Certified Pu{dic Accoun;ﬂntx ' American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations California Society of Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Solutions for Change, Inc.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solutions for Change, Inc., which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2D Page 14 of 54



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Solutions for Change, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes
in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 27 to 32 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organization, and
is also not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 15, 2014, on our
consideration of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Solutions for Change, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Leaficole LLf

San Diego, California
May 15, 2014
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ASSETS

Current Assets: (Notes 1, 2, 3 and 4)
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and other receivables
Related party receivables, current portion
Pledges receivable, current portion
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Inventory
Tenant trust funds
Tenant security deposits
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, Net (Notes 1, 6 and 9)

Other Assets: (Notes 1, 3, 4, 5 and 12)
Related party receivables, net, noncurrent
Pledges receivable, net, noncurrent
Operating reserve
Replacement reserves
Deposits

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2013

98,511
75,434
420,343
378,450
45,009
6,500
32,428
25,167

1,081,842

13,769,134

503,269
258,529
89,200
149,967
9,000

1,009,965

15,860,941

2012

192,936
83,246
176,577
26,553
9,483
24,611
27,774

541,180

13,639,842

500,941
89,200
182,002
25,000

797,143

$_14,078.165_
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities: (Notes 1, 7 and 9)
Accounts payable $
Accrued expenses
Tenant trust funds
Tenant security deposits
Interest payable
Lines-of-credit payable
Current portion of long-term liabilities

2013

125,116
131,011
36,644
25,167
17,733

1,025,585

Total Current Liabilities

1,361,256

Long-Term Liabilities: (Notes 8 and 9)
Share of defiency in partnerships
Notes payable, net of current portion
Interest payable

39
12,448,759
1,495,309

Total Long-Term Liabilities

13,944,107

Total Liabilities

15,305,363

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 11 and 12)

Minority Interest in Subsidiary

(2,451)

Net Assets: (Notes 1 and 10)
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

(163,517)

721,546

Total Net Assets

558,029

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $

15,860,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2012

93,527
111,758
33,433
27,774
8,587
190,000
22,589

487,668

12,292,268
1,256,472

13,548,740

14,036,408

(32)

245,078
696,711

941,789

$_14,078,165_
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Support and Revenue:
Contributions
Grants
Rental income
In-kind donations
Developer fees
Social enterprise
Interest and miscellaneous
Net assets released from restriction
Total Support and Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Program services
Fundraising
Management and general
Total Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets Before Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses)

Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):
Minority interest in deficit of revenue
and support over expenses of subsidiary
Partnership loss
Depreciation
Interest - residual receipts debt
Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses)

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

2013 2012
Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 1,640,180 $ 201,413 $ 1,841,593 $ 1949680 $ 166,753 $ 2,116,433
748,395 - 748,395 456,085 - 456,085
428,259 - 428,259 304,813 - 304,813
294,845 - 294,845 208,241 - 208,241
689,861 - 689,861 150,000 - 150,000
33,661 - 33,661 33,782 - 33,782
15,742 - 15,742 33,396 - 33,396
176,578 (176,578) - 394,596 (394,596) -
4,027,521 24,835 4,052,356 3,530,593 (227,843) 3,302,750
3,088,448 - 3,088,448 2,458,288 - 2,458,288
383,412 - 383,412 364,326 - 364,326
266,096 - 266,096 214,675 - 214,675
3,737,956 - 3,737,956 3,037,289 - 3,037,289
289,565 24,835 314,400 493,304 (227,843) 265,461
2,419 - 2,419 2,404 - 2,404
(39) - (39) - - -
(461,703) - (461,703) (379,350) - (379,350)
(238,837) - (238,837) (182,934) - (182,934)
(698,160) - (698,160) (559,880) - (559,880)
(408,595) 24,835 (383,760) (66,576) (227,843) (294,419)
245,078 696,711 941,789 311,654 924,554 1,236,208
$ (163517) $ 721546 $ 558,029 $ 245078 $ 696,711 $ 941,789

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Program Services Supporting Services

Solutions Solutions Total
For Change Family Program Management
Programs Center Services and General Fundraising Total
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wages $ 1,498,691 $ 23,004 $ 1521695 $ 58,651 $ 78976 $ 1,659,322
In-kind expense 294,845 - 294,845 - - 294,845
Fundraising expenses - - - - 284,967 284,967
Insurance 154,980 26,121 181,101 17,220 12,504 210,825
Repairs and maintenance 137,348 27,867 165,215 15,261 - 180,476
Utilities and refuse removal 84,177 56,257 140,434 9,353 - 149,787
Professional fees 92,527 - 92,527 45,796 - 138,323
Interest 128,547 8,587 137,134 - - 137,134
Payroll taxes 118,724 3,000 121,724 4,304 6,456 132,484
Meetings and seminars 49 946 - 49,946 74918 - 124,864
Rent 104,050 - 104,050 - - 104,050
Adwertising 61,108 - 61,108 144 - 61,252
Telephone 41,269 11,287 52,556 4,585 - 57,141
Office expense 43,365 100 43,465 7,079 - 50,544
Supplies 37,378 800 38,178 - - 38,178
Automobile and truck 28,968 - 28,968 - - 28,968
Other expense 19,726 - 19,726 - - 19,726
Cost of goods sold 17,676 - 17,676 - - 17,676
Bank and merchant fees - - - 17,105 - 17,105
Property fees - - - 10,796 - 10,796
Dues and subscriptions 8,150 - 8,150 - - 8,150
Postage and printing 5,501 - 5,501 - - 5,501
Payroll processing 2,374 - 2,374 509 509 3,392
Miscellaneous 2,075 - 2,075 375 - 2,450
Total Operating Expenses 2,931,425 157,023 3,088,448 266,096 383,412 3,737,956
Nonoperating Expenses:
Depreciation 296,400 165,303 461,703 - - 461,703
Interest - residual receipts debt 125,996 112,841 238,837 - - 238,837
Total Nonoperating Expenses 422,396 278,144 700,540 - - 700,540
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 3353821 % 435,167 $ 3,788,988 $ 266,096 $ 383,412 $ 4,438,496

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Program Services Supporting Services

Solutions Solutions Total
For Change Family Program Management
Programs Center Services and General Fundraising Total
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wages $ 1,100,061 $ 23,004 $ 1,123,065 $ 58,651 $ 78,976 $ 1,260,692
Fundraising expenses - - - - 265,957 265,957
In-kind expense 208,241 - 208,241 - - 208,241
Rent 177,620 - 177,620 - - 177,620
Insurance 101,278 26,220 127,498 11,253 12,504 151,255
Repairs and maintenance 78,600 31,281 109,881 8,442 - 118,323
Utilities and refuse removal 49,350 56,133 105,483 5,483 - 110,966
Payroll taxes 92,308 3,000 95,308 4,304 6,456 106,068
Meetings and seminars 39,873 - 39,873 59,810 - 99,683
Professional fees 59,238 - 59,238 30,436 - 89,674
Advertising 84,944 - 84,944 157 - 85,101
Bad debt expense 70,250 - 70,250 - - 70,250
Supplies 64,418 800 65,218 175 - 65,393
Office expense 48,560 549 49,109 5,396 - 54,505
Telephone 36,195 9,469 45,664 4,022 - 49,686
Interest 39,431 8,587 48,018 - - 48,018
Automobile and truck 38,112 - 38,112 - - 38,112
Bank and merchant fees - - - 14,705 - 14,705
Property fees - - - 10,716 - 10,716
Dues and subscriptions 5,131 - 5,131 - - 5,131
Postage and printing 3,616 - 3,616 - - 3,616
Payroll processing 2,019 - 2,019 433 433 2,885
Miscellaneous - - - 693 - 693
Total Operating Expenses 2,299,245 159,043 2,458,288 214,675 364,326 3,037,289
Nonoperating Expenses:
Depreciation 220,656 158,694 379,350 - - 379,350
Interest - residual receipts debt 70,093 112,841 182,934 - - 182,934
Total Nonoperating Expenses 290,749 271,535 562,284 - - 562,284
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 2589994 $ 430,578 $ 3,020,572 $ 214,675 $ 364,326 $ 3,599,573

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Partnership loss

Interest - residual receipts debt

Minority interest deficit of revenue and support over
expenses of subsidiary

(Increase) Decrease in:
Grants and other receivables
Pledges receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Inventory
Tenant trust funds
Tenant security deposits

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Tenant trust funds
Interest payable
Tenant security deposits

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Related party receivables advance
Withdrawals from (deposits to) replacement reserves, net
Refund of deposits
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

(Continued)

2013 2012

$  (383,760) $  (294,419)

461,703 379,350
39 -
238,837 182,934
(2,419) (2,404)
7,812 (19,550)
40,539 247,036
(18,456) 21,280
2,983 (9,483)
(7,817) 9,429
2,607 1,050
31,589 17,101
19,253 49,759
3,211 (12,435)
9,146 -
(2,607) (3,860)
402,660 565,788
(590,995) (2,982,265)
(923,612) -
32,035 (47,025)
16,000 52,000
(1,466,572) (2,977,290)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from lines-of-credit payable
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest (Note 1) $
Cash paid for Franchise tax $

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing Activities:
Lines of credit payable converted to notes payable $

2013 2012

- 190,000
1,068,184 2,081,650
(98,697) (78,929)
969,487 2,192,721
(94,425) (218,781)
192,936 411,717
98,511 $ 192,936
127,988 $ 56,605
800 $ 800

190,000 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2D Page 22 of 54



Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:

Organization

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization include the accounts of the following entities:

Solutions for Change, Inc.

Solutions for Change, Inc. (“Solutions for Change™), formerly North County Solutions for Change, was
incorporated in the State of California on November 15, 1999. The mission of the Organization is to end
family homelessness in North San Diego County. The Organization is supported primarily through donor
contributions and grants.

Solutions Family Center, L.P.

Solutions Family Center, L.P. (the “Partnership”) was formed as a limited partnership under the laws of the
State of California on December 18, 2000. The Partnership was established for the purpose and intent of
constructing and operating a rental housing project. The rental housing project was placed into service in
November 2004 and is located in Vista, California. The project consists of 33 units. The Organization is
the General Partner and owns 99% of the Partnership.

Limited Liability Companies

Solutions Vista Terrace, LLC

Solutions Vista Terrace, LLC has a 0.005% interest in SFC Vista Terrace, L.P., which has been
recorded on the equity method. Its sole member is Solutions for Change.

Solutions Parkview, LLC

Solutions Parkview, LLC has a 0.02% interest in Parkview San Marcos Il, L.P., which has been
recorded on the equity method. Its sole member is Solutions for Change.

Solutions for Change - Our Mission and our Model

In 2013, the Organization completed a plan outlining the Organization’s vision, priorities and implementation
strategies for the next several years. The results of this work, conducted over several months and approved by
the Board of Directors, produced the Solutions for Change Vision, Priorities and Plan to Solve Family
Homelessness. This document will guide the Organization moving forward in its efforts to achieve its mission.
Of particular note, the Organization made two larger organizational changes, which were reviewed and
approved by the IRS. First, it changed its name from North County Solutions for Change, Inc. to Solutions for
Change, Inc. and second, the Organization formally revised its mission statement from “to end family
homelessness in North San Diego County” to “The mission of Solutions for Change is to solve family
homelessness — one family, one community at a time”. These changes will allow Solutions for Change to
better carry out its purpose.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Solutions for Change, Inc., Solutions Family
Center, L.P. and the Limited Liability Companies, Solutions Vista Terrace, LLC and Solutions Parkview, LLC.
All material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Significant Accounting Policies

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements present information regarding the financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently
restricted net assets.

= Unrestricted net assets — Net assets not subject to donor imposed stipulations

= Temporarily restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that will be met by
actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor stipulated time restriction ends or
a purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

= Permanently restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations requiring that they
be maintained permanently by the Organization. The income from these assets is available for either
general operations or specific programs as specified by the donor.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair
value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within
Level 1 or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The Organization had no financial
instruments as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Management believes that all receivables were fully collectible; therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts
was recorded as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
if the restriction expires in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets.

Inventory

Inventory consists of operating supplies related to the operations of the Solutions Farm. Inventory is valued at
the lower cost (first-in, first-out) or market.

Capitalization and Depreciation

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $2,000 for property and equipment at cost, while
donations of property and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported
as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated
with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and
equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long these donated
assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or
acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies temporarily
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Property and equipment is depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful asset lives as follows:
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capitalization and Depreciation (Continued)

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 5 - 40 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 - 10 years
Machinery and equipment 5 -7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation totaled $461,703 and $379,350 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to operations as incurred. Upon sale or disposition of
property and equipment, the asset account is relieved of the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is
charged with depreciation taken prior to the sale and any resultant gain or loss is credited or charged to
earnings.

Interest totaling $-0- and $36,620 has been capitalized and is included in buildings and improvements for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Impairment of Real Estate

The Organization reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable. Recoverability is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the real estate to the future net undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated by the rental property including any estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition
of the real estate. If the real estate is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured
at the amount by which the carrying amount of real estate exceeds the fair value of such property. There were
no impairment losses recognized in 2013 and 2012.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation totaling $51,781 and $25,494 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is
accrued as earned and included in accrued expenses.

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2D Page 26 of 54



Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tenant Trust Funds

Tenant trust funds represent amounts held on behalf of tenants. In accordance with the funding agreement,
the Organization holds 10% of the tenant rent in trust for tenants as a “set aside” to be used for rental of
permanent housing when the tenant successfully completes the program. The Organization also maintains
savings accounts for program participants. The tenant trust funds consist of the following at December 31:

2013 2012
Set aside funds $ 4,216 $ 8,822
Client savings funds 32,428 24,611

$ 36,644 $ 33,433

Tenant Security Deposits

Tenant security deposits are held by the project and these funds are restricted to the extent of the tenant
security deposit liability of $25,167 and $27,774 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Rental income is recognized for apartment rents as it accrues. Advance receipts of rental income are deferred
or classified as liabilities until earned.

Grant revenue is recognized in the period in which the related work is performed in accordance with the terms
of the grant. Grants receivable are recorded when revenue earned under a grant exceeds the cash received.
Deferred revenue is recorded when cash received under a grant exceeds the revenue earned.

Unrestricted Net Assets

The Organization’s unrestricted net assets include depreciation on property and equipment and accrued interest
on loans for which the interest may only be paid from residual receipts. The amounts included in the
unrestricted net assets totaled $461,703 and $379,350 for depreciation and $238,837 and $182,934 for interest
on residual receipts debt, for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Donated Services and Materials

The Organization utilizes the services of many volunteers throughout the year. This contribution of services
by the volunteers is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless the services received (a)
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills which are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. The donated
services for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, did not meet the requirements above, therefore no
amounts were recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Donated Services and Materials (Continued)

The Organization received in-kind contributions totaling $294,845 and $208,241 for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which have been recorded as contributions revenue and
operating expenses in the statement of activities.

Allocated Expenses

Expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting services classification on the basis
of internal records and estimates made by the Organization’s management.

Income Taxes

Solutions for Change is a public charity and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Solutions for
Change believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any
uncertain tax positions that are material to the consolidated financial statements. Solutions for Change is not a
private foundation.

The Partnership and the Limited Liability Companies have recorded no provision or benefit for income taxes
since taxable income (loss) passes through to, and is reportable by, the partners individually.

Solutions for Change’s Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax and the Partnership’s tax returns for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, and 2010 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue
Service and State taxing authorities, generally three to four years after the returns were filed.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The Organization believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all investment
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organization has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through May 15, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued, and concluded that there were no events or transactions that needed to be disclosed
except as disclosed in Note 13.

Reclassification

The Organization has reclassified certain prior year information to conform with the current year presentation.

Note 2 - Grants and Other Receivables:

Grants and other receivables consist of the following at December 31:

2013 2012
State of California $ 44,328 $ 23,674
County of San Diego 16,396 49,037
Other 8,278 5,368
City of Vista 6,432 1,000
HUD SHP - 4,167
Total Grants and Other Receivables $ 75,434 $ 83,246
Note 3 - Pledges Receivable:
Pledges receivable consist of the following at December 31:
013 2012
Due in less than one year $ 378,450 $ 176,577
Due in one to five years 266,800 525,000
Less: Discounts to present value (8,271) (24,059)
Due in more than one year 258,529 500,941
Pledges Receivable, Net $ 636,979 $ 677,518

Pledges receivable have been discounted to their net present value using a discount rate of 3.00% for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Note 4 — Related Party Receivables:

Related party receivables consist of the following at December 31:

The note receivable, which originated on July 1, 2012 and was
amended effective April 11, 2013, from SFC Vista Terrace, L.P., in
the original amount of $798,438 ($433,415 and $-0- advanced as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) bears interest at 3% per
annum. Principal and interest are payable from net cash flow and no
payments are expected to be received on the note for the next five
years. Principal and accrued interest are due July 1, 2067. Secured by
a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $5,697 and $-0- at December
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. $ 439,112 $ -

Developer fee receivable from SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. in the original

amount of $612,000. The developer fee is paid from Limited Partner

capital installments with any unpaid amounts payable from available
cash flow. 484,500 -
Total Related Party Receivables 923,612 -
Less: Current portion (420,343) -
Related Party Receivables, Noncurrent $ 503,269 $ -

Note 5 - Restricted Reserves:

According to the Partnership, loan and other regulatory agreements, the Organization is required to maintain the
following reserves:

Operating Reserve

The Partnership is required to fund an operating reserve up to the amount of $89,200. There is no annual
funding requirement for this reserve. The operating reserve balance totaled $89,200 at December 31, 2013 and
2012.

Replacement Reserves

The Partnership is required to fund a replacement reserve in the initial amount of $20,000 in accordance with
the regulatory agreement with the City of Vista. In accordance with the operating budget approved by the
Department of Housing and Community Development, the Partnership is required to fund a replacement
reserve of $16,386 annually beginning March 24, 2005. The reserve requirement was reduced by the
Department of Housing and Community Development by $20,000 to offset the reserve mandated by the City
of Vista. All replacement reserve requirements were met as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The replacement
reserve balance totaled $16,436 and $136,680 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Note 5 - Restricted Reserves: (Continued)

Replacement Reserves (Continued)

The Organization is required to maintain replacement reserve accounts for each property obtained through
Neighborhood Stabilization Program and HOME Investment Partnership Program funding. These amounts
vary by property and must be funded annually beginning two months subsequent to the completion of
rehabilitation. All replacement reserve requirements were met as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The
replacement reserve balance totaled $133,531 and $45,322 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 6 - Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31.:

2013 2012

Land $ 2,736,678 $ 2,700,809
Land improvements 356,395 356,395
Buildings and improvements 12,567,727 12,077,747
Furniture and fixtures 144,615 144,615
Machinery and equipment 203,576 138,430
Vehicles 98,947 98,947
Subtotal 16,107,938 15,516,943
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,338,804) (1,877,101)
Property and Equipment, Net $ 13,769,134 $ 13,639,842

Note 7 - Lines-of-Credit:

The Organization had a line-of-credit with Pacific Western Bank in the amount of $100,000 with interest at 6%.
The line-of-credit expired on July 7, 2013, and was converted to a note payable in 2013. The outstanding
balance totaled $-0- and $100,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Organization had a line-of-credit with Pacific Western Bank in the amount of $90,000 with interest at 6%.
The line-of-credit was converted to a note payable in 2013. The outstanding balance totaled $-0- and $90,000
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 8 - Investments in Partnerships:

Solutions for Change is the sole member of two limited liability companies The Limited Liability Companies
own general partner interests in partnerships that they account for on the equity method, which are their entire
assets and liabilities. The following are the balances in the Limited Liability Companies’ partnership tax basis
capital accounts of the partnerships as of December 31.:

2013 2012
SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. (.005%) $ 39 $ -
Parkview San Marcos Il, L.P. (.02%) - -
Total Share of Deficiency in Partnerships $ 39 $ -
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Note 8 - Investments in Partnerships: (Continued)

Solutions for Change provided development and management services to the partnerships for which it earned

the following amounts for the years ended December 31:

2013
Management Other Developer
Fees Services Fees
SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. $ 7,252 99,741 $ 612,000
Parkview San Marcos I, L.P. - - 27,861
$ 7,252 99,741 $ 639,861
2012
Management Other Developer
Fees Services Fees
SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. $ - - $ -
Parkview San Marcos I, L.P. - - -
$ - - $ -
Note 9 - Notes Payable:
Notes payable consist of the following at December 31:
2013 2012

Solutions for Change, Inc.

North Island Financial Credit Union payable in monthly instaliments
of $638 including interest at 6.5%, due December 15, 2015, secured

by vehicle.

Promissory note, which was originated on March 29, 2006, held by
the Department of Housing and Community Development in the
original amount of $924,850. Of this amount, $864,542 and $47,584
were provided for the purchase of the East Vista Way property. The
note bears interest at 3% per annum. Repayment of principal and
accrued interest are deferred as long as the Organization operates the
facility as an emergency shelter or transition housing in compliance
the terms of the agreement. In the event that the compliance
standards are met, the loan will be forgiven at the maturity date of
March 29, 2016 for the first draw and August 25, 2016 for the second
draw. Secured by a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $213,732

and $186,368 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(Continued)

$

12,413 $ 19,748

912,126 912,126

GFC 1/14/15 ltem 2D Page 32 of 54



Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)

The loan payable, which originated September 24, 2009, is held by
the County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $357,762. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of September 24, 2024. Secured by a deed of trust. $ 351,356 $ 351,356

The loan payable, which originated November 16, 2009, is held by
the County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $79,156. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of November 16, 2024. Secured by a deed of trust. 79,156 79,156

The loan payable, which originated September 3, 2009, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $301,084. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of September 3, 2024. Secured by a deed of trust. 301,084 301,084

The loan payable, which originated February 3, 2010, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $461,369. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of February 3, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust. 456,518 456,518

The loan payable, which originated February 26, 2010, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $132,704. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of February 26, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust. 129,342 129,342

(Continued)
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)

The loan payable, which originated January 7, 2010, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $286,010. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of January 7, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust. $ 278,900 $ 278,900

The loan payable, which originated August 4, 2010, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $332,847. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of August 4, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust. 323,095 323,095

The loan payable, which originated July 22, 2010, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $392,272. The loan is
noninterest bearing. In the event that all terms and obligations of the
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the
maturity date of July 22, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust. 375,310 375,310

The loan payable, which originated April 13, 2011, is held by the
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $3,421,452 ($3,408,032
advanced as of December 31, 2013). The loan bears interest at 3%
per annum. Principal and accrued interest are payable from residual
receipts (50%) from the Primrose property with the remaining
residual receipts (50%) to be held in a segregated operating reserve
account. The Primrose property was placed in service in 2012.
Principal and accrued interest are due April 1, 2066. Secured by a
deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $229,069 and $130,437 at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 3,408,032 2,848,634

(Continued)
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)

The loan payable, which originated April 1, 2011, is held by the
Clearinghouse Community Development Financial Institution in the
original amount of $1,100,000. Principal and accrued interest are
payable in monthly installments of $6,419 including interest at 5.75%
beginning March 1, 2012. Principal and accrued interest are due May
1, 2021. Secured by a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $6,420
and $-0- at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. $ 1,024,042 $ 1,027,587

The loan payable, which originated October 19, 2012, is held by
First-Citizens Bank & Trust in the original amount of $496,000.
Principal and accrued interest are payable in monthly installments of
$3,155 including interest at 4.5%, beginning November 24, 2012.
Principal and accrued interest are due October 24, 2019. Secured by
a deed of trust. 474,326 492,603

The loan payable, which originated on October 23, 2012, is held by
Veritas Services LLC in the original amount of $120,000. Payable in
monthly interest only payments at 8.5%. Principal and accrued
interest are due November 1, 2014. Secured by a deed of trust. 120,000 120,000

The loan payable, which originated January 16, 2013, is held by
First-Citizens Bank & Trust in the original amount of $192,000.
Principal and accrued interest are payable in monthly installments of
$1,221 including interest at 4.5%. Principal and accrued interest are
due January 16, 2020. Secured by a deed of trust. Accrued interest
totaled $723 and $-0- at December 31, and 2012, respectively. 186,455 -

The loan payable, which was originated on October 28, 2013,
converted from a line of credit dated July 7, 2011, held by Pacific
Western Bank in the original amount of $100,000, reduced to
$90,000 upon conversion. Principal and accrued interest are payable
in monthly installments of $2,741 including interest at the bank’s
variable rate (6.0% at December 31, 2013). Principal and accrued
interest are due October 7, 2016. Secured by a commercial security
agreement. Accrued interest totaled $443 and $-0- at December 31,
and 2012, respectively. 85,511 -

(Continued)
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued)
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Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)

The loan payable, which was originated on February 28, 2013,
converted from a line of credit dated November 29, 2011, held by
Pacific Western Bank in the original amount of $90,000, reduced to
$80,000 upon conversion. Principal and accrued interest are payable
in monthly installments of $2,880 including interest at 6.0%.
Principal and accrued interest are due August 28, 2015. Unsecured.
Accrued interest totaled $310 and $-0- at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. $ 57,280 $ -

The loan payable, which was originated on December 31, 2013, held
by Mr. Barter in the original amount of $300,000. Interest is accrued
at 5.0% per annum. Principal and accrued interest are payable by
February 15, 2014. Accrued interest totaled $1,250 and $-0- at
December 31, and 2012, respectively. 300,000

Total Solutions for Change, Inc. 8,874,946 7,715,459

Solutions Family Center, L.P.

The mortgage note, which was originated on March 8, 2005, is held
by the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (MHP) in the original amount of $2,044,512. The
note bears interest at 3% per annum. Payments in the amount of
forty-two hundredths of one percent (.42%) per annum on the
unpaid principal balance of the loan are payable beginning
December 31, 2005 and continuing annually thereafter up to the
twenty-ninth  anniversary of the interest payment date.
Commencing on the thirtieth (30th) anniversary of the interest
payment date and continuing annually thereafter, payments shall
equal the lesser of (1) the full amount of interest accruing on the
unpaid principal balance during the year, or (2) the amount
determined by the lender as to be necessary to cover the costs of
continued monitoring of the compliance requirements under the
loan. In addition, the note may require additional payments from
net cash flow under the terms of the regulatory agreement. The
note is due March 2060. Secured by a deed of trust. Accrued
interest totaled $463,164 and $410,415 at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, and the required interest payments totaled
$8,587 and $8,587 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. 2,044,512 2,044,512

(Continued)
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

N
o
-
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Solutions Family Center, L.P. (Continued)

The mortgage note, which was originated on July 30, 2003, is held
by the San Diego County Department of Housing and Community
Development in the original amount of $957,000. The note bears
interest at 3% per annum. Principal and accrued interest are payable
from residual receipts, as defined in the agreement, calculated
annually. Principal and accrued interest are due July 2058. Secured
by a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $289,722 and $261,012
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. $ 957,000 $ 957,000

The mortgage note, which was originated on July 28, 2003, is held
by the City of Vista in the original amount of $550,000. The note
bears interest at 3% per annum. Principal and accrued interest are
payable from residual receipts, as defined in the agreement,
calculated annually. Principal and accrued interest are due July
2058. Secured by a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $164,986
and $148,486 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 550,000 550,000

The mortgage note, which was originated on July 31, 2003, is held by
the City of Escondido in the original amount of $375,100. The note is
non-interest bearing. Principal is due July 2058. Secured by a deed of
trust. 375,100 375,100

The mortgage note, which was originated on July 24, 2003, is held
by the Bank of America for the Affordable Housing Program (AHP)
in the original amount of $176,700. The note is non-interest
bearing provided that all compliance requirements of the loan are
met. Principal is due July 2021. Secured by a deed of trust. 176,700 176,700

The mortgage note, which was originated on April 9, 2004, is held by
the California Department of Housing and Community Development
in the amount of $496,086. The note bears interest at 3% per annum.
In the event that all terms and obligations of the note have been met,
the loan will be forgiven at the maturity date of April 19, 2014.
Secured by a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $143,223 and
$128,341 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 496,086 496,086

Total Solutions Family Center, L.P. 4,599,398 4,599,398

Total Notes Payable 13,474,344 12,314,857
Less: Current Portion (1,025,585) (22,589)

Notes Payable, Long-Term $ 12,448,759 $ 12,292,268
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

The future principal payments on the notes payable are as follows:

Solutions
Years Ended Solutions for Family

December 31 Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Total
2014 $ 529,499 $ 496,086 $ 1,025,585
2015 104,785 - 104,785
2016 985,022 - 985,022
2017 48,630 - 48,630
2018 51,154 - 51,154
Thereafter 7,155,856 4,103,312 11,259,168
Total $ 8,874,946 $ 4,599,398 $ 13,474,344

Note 10 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at December 31:

2013 2012
Pledges receivable - Operations $ 636,978 $ 677,519
Building improvements for Vista Terrace 84,568 19,192

$ 721,546 $ 696,711

Net assets in the amount of $176,578 and $394,596 were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses
and events satisfying the purpose or time restrictions specified by donors for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 11 - Contingencies:

The Partnership entered into loan agreements with several agencies for the purpose of building and maintaining
the tenant housing facilities. These agreements specify requirements for the building maintenance. The loans
will be forgiven at the end of the loan term if all requirements have been met. In the event that the Partnership
does not comply with the agreement, sells the property, or desists using the facility for its original intended
purposes, these notes may be called.
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Note 12 - Commitments:

L_eases

Office Space

In 2004, the Organization began occupying approximately 7,200 square feet of donated office space at the
Center’s facility located at 702 West California Avenue, Vista, California. Estimated fair market value of
the donated facilities in 2013 and 2012 was $129,600. Due to the elimination of intercompany transactions
during the consolidation process, the rent accrual and expense are not reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Vehicle

The Organization leases a vehicle under a three year lease agreement beginning November 2011 and ending
in January 2015, with a monthly payment of $602. Rent expense totaled $7,224 for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Contracts

On June 1, 2012, the Organization entered into a five year employment contract with the President, which
provides a base salary plus an annual bonus based on performance and not to exceed 20% of the current salary.
After the five years, there is an option to renew annually.

On June 1, 2012, the Organization entered into a five year employment contract with the Vice President, which
provides a base salary plus an annual bonus based on performance and not to exceed 15% of the current salary.
After the five years, there is an option to renew annually.

Property Purchase Agreement

The Organization has entered into purchase agreements for various real property. In connection with these
agreements it has made deposits totaling $9,000 and $25,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments related to the commitments:

Years Ended

December 31 Leases Contracts Total
2014 $ 7,224 $ 225,000 $ 232,224
2015 602 225,000 225,602
2016 - 225,000 225,000
2017 - 112,500 112,500

Total $ 7,826 $ 787,500 $ 795,326
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Note 13 - Subsequent Events:

On February 7, 2014, the Organization formed, and is the sole member of, Solutions Weitzel, LLC, a California
limited liability company. The new entity is an income tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and Section 23071(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Its purpose is to
serve as the managing partner of one or more limited partnerships that own, operate and manage various
multifamily affordable housing projects located in California. As of the date the consolidated financial statements
were available to be issued, no operating activities have occurred within this new entity.

On February 14, 2014, the Organization formed, and is the sole member of, Solutions Escondido Boulevard, LLC,
a California limited liability company. The new entity is an income tax exempt organization under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23071(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. Its
purpose is to serve as the managing partner of one or more limited partnerships that own, operate and manage
various multifamily affordable housing projects located in California. As of the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued, no operating activities have occurred within this new entity.
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ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family

Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,982 $ 1529 $ - $ 98,511
Grants and other receivables 75,434 - - 75,434
Related party receivables, current portion 420,343 - - 420,343
Pledges receivable, current portion 378,450 - - 378,450
Prepaid expenses and deposits 43,905 1,104 - 45,009
Inventory 6,500 - - 6,500
Tenant trust funds 32,428 - - 32,428
Tenant security deposits 16,758 8,409 - 25,167
Total Current Assets 1,070,800 11,042 - 1,081,842
Property and Equipment, Net 8,853,963 4,915,171 - 13,769,134

Other Assets:

Investment in subsidiary (645,788) - 645,788 -
Related party receivables, net, noncurrent 503,269 - - 503,269
Pledges receivable, net, noncurrent 258,529 - - 258,529
Operating reserve - 89,200 - 89,200
Replacement reserves 133,531 16,436 - 149,967
Deposit 9,000 - - 9,000
Total Other Assets 258,541 105,636 645,788 1,009,965
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,183,304 $ 5031,849 $ 645,788 $ 15,860,941
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Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Tenant trust funds
Tenant security deposits
Interest payable
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Share of defiency in partnerships
Notes payable, net of current portion
Interest payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Minority Interest in Subsidiary

Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated

$ 117,121 $ 799 $ - $ 125,116
131,011 - - 131,011
33,453 3,191 - 36,644
16,758 8,409 - 25,167
9,146 8,587 - 17,733
529,499 496,086 - 1,025,585
836,988 524,268 - 1,361,256
39 - - 39
8,345,447 4,103,312 - 12,448,759
442,801 1,052,508 - 1,495,309
8,788,287 5,155,820 - 13,944,107
9,625,275 5,680,088 - 15,305,363
- - (2,451) (2,451)
(163,517) (648,239) 648,239 (163,517)
721,546 - - 721,546
558,029 (648,239) 648,239 558,029
10,183,304 $ 5,031,849 $ 645,788 $ 15,860,941
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ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 192,377 $ 559 $ - 192,936
Grants and other receivables 86,201 - (2,955) 83,246
Pledges receivable, current portion 176,577 - - 176,577
Prepaid expenses and deposits 25,575 978 - 26,553
Inventory 9,483 - - 9,483
Tenant trust funds 24,611 - - 24,611
Tenant security deposits 15,786 11,988 - 21,774
Total Current Assets 530,610 13,525 (2,955) 541,180
Property and Equipment, Net 8,710,555 4,929,287 - 13,639,842
Other Assets:
Investment in subsidiary (406,349) - 406,349 -
Pledges receivable, net, noncurrent 500,941 - - 500,941
Operating reserve - 89,200 - 89,200
Replacement reserves 45,322 136,680 - 182,002
Deposit 25,000 - - 25,000
Total Other Assets 164,914 225,880 406,349 797,143
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,406,079 $ 5,168,692 $ 403,394 $ 14,978,165
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 87,206 $ 9,276 % (2,955) $ 93,527
Accrued expenses 111,758 - - 111,758
Tenant trust funds 27,276 6,157 - 33,433
Tenant security deposits 15,786 11,988 - 27,774
Interest payable - 8,587 - 8,587
Lines-of-credit payable 190,000 - - 190,000
Current portion of long-term liabilities 22,589 - - 22,589
Total Current Liabilities 454,615 36,008 (2,955) 487,668
Long-Term Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion 7,692,870 4,599,398 - 12,292,268
Interest payable 316,805 939,667 - 1,256,472
Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,009,675 5,539,065 - 13,548,740
Total Liabilities 8,464,290 5,575,073 (2,955) 14,036,408
Minority Interest in Subsidiary - - (32) (32)
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 245,078 (406,381) 406,381 245,078
Temporarily restricted 696,711 - - 696,711
Total Net Assets 941,789 (406,381) 406,381 941,789
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 9,406,079 $ 5,168,692 $ 403,394 $ 14,978,165
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Solutions

Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations  Consolidated
Unrestricted Net Assets:
Support and Revenue:
Contributions $ 1,640,180 $ - $ - $ 1,640,180
Grants 748,395 - - 748,395
Rental income 494,822 324,523 (391,086) 428,259
In-kind contributions 294,845 - - 294,845
Developer fees 689,861 - - 689,861
Social enterprise 33,661 - - 33,661
Interest and miscellaneous 9,171 22,957 (16,386) 15,742
Net assets released from restriction 176,578 - - 176,578
Total Support and Revenue 4,087,513 347,480 (407,472) 4,027,521
Operating Expenses:
Program services 3,209,297 286,623 (407,472) 3,088,448
Fundraising 383,412 - - 383,412
Management and general 241,525 24,571 - 266,096
Total Operating Expenses 3,834,234 311,194 (407,472) 3,737,956
Change in Unrestricted Net Assets Before
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) 253,279 36,286 - 289,565
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):
Excess (deficit) of support and revenue
over expenses of subsidiary (239,439) - 241,858 2,419
Partnership loss (39) - - (39)
Depreciation (296,400) (165,303) - (461,703)
Interest - residual receipts debt (125,996) (112,841) - (238,837)
Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) (661,874) (278,144) 241,858 (698,160)
Change in Unrestricted Net Assets (408,595) (241,858) 241,858 (408,595)
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions 201,413 - - 201,413
Net assets released from restrictions (176,578) - - (176,578)
Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 24,835 - - 24,835
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 941,789 (406,381) 406,381 941,789
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 558,029 $ (648,239) $ 648,239 $ 558,029
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Solutions

Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P.  Eliminations  Consolidated
Unrestricted Net Assets:
Support and Revenue:
Contributions $ 1,949,680 - 3 - $ 1,949,680
Grants 456,085 - - 456,085
Rental income 357,126 315,537 (367,850) 304,813
In-kind contributions 208,241 - - 208,241
Developer fees 150,000 - - 150,000
Sacial enterprise 33,782 - 33,782
Interest and miscellaneous 28,212 21,570 (16,386) 33,396
Net assets released from restriction 394,596 - - 394,596
Total Support and Revenue 3,577,722 337,107 (384,236) 3,530,593
Operating Expenses:
Program services 2,553,881 288,643 (384,236) 2,458,288
Fundraising 364,326 - - 364,326
Management and general 197,373 17,302 - 214,675
Total Operating Expenses 3,115,580 305,945 (384,236) 3,037,289
Change in Unrestricted Net Assets Before
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) 462,142 31,162 - 493,304
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):
Excess (deficit) of support and revenue
over expenses of subsidiary (237,969) - 240,373 2,404
Depreciation (220,656) (158,694) - (379,350)
Interest - residual receipts debt (70,093) (112,841) - (182,934)
Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) (528,718) (271,535) 240,373 (559,880)
Change in Unrestricted Net Assets (66,576) (240,373) 240,373 (66,576)
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions 166,753 - - 166,753
Net assets released from restrictions (394,596) - - (394,596)
Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (227,843) - - (227,843)
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 1,236,208 (166,008) 166,008 1,236,208
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 941,789 $ (406,381) $ 406,381 $ 941,789
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Federal

CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Programs:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 $ 445,509
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 14.231 6,825
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 22,494
Total Direct Programs 474,828
Pass-Through Programs:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants: 14.218
City of Vista 23,654
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 472,556
Total Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 496,210
Emergency Solutions Grants Program: 14.231
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 89,395
Shelter Plus Care : 14.238
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 160,518
HOME Investment Partnerships Program: 14.239
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 2,935,477
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (Recovery Act Funds): 14.256
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 2,294,761
Total Pass-Through Programs 5,976,361
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 6,451,189

Note - Basis of Presentation

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Solutions for Change, Inc.
and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.
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Steven W. Northcote, C.P.A.
Michael S. Schreibman, C.P.A.

Michael J. Zizzi, C.P.A.

Julie A. Firl, C.P.A.

Nicholas M. Gines, C.P.A.
LCaf@*' COIC, LLP Members
Certified Pu{dic Accoun;ﬂntx ' American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations California Society of Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Solutions for Change, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Solutions for Change, Inc.,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 15, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Solutions for
Change, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s consolidated
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Solutions for Change, Inc.’s consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Leaficole LLF

San Diego, California
May 15, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Directors
Solutions for Change, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Solutions for Change, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Solutions
for Change, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. Solutions for Change, Inc.’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about Solutions for Change, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Solutions for Change, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Solutions for Change, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Solutions for Change, Inc.’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Solutions for
Change, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Leaficole LLP

San Diego, California
May 15, 2014
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Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?
Identification of major programs:

CDFA Number(s)

14.256

14.218

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section |1l - Financial Statement Findings:

None

Section 111 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

None

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

Yes

Yes

Yes

No
None reported

No

None reported

No

No

Neighborhood Stabilization Program

Community Development Block
Grant/Entitlement Grants

X Yes

No
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There were no prior audit findings for Solutions for Change, Inc. relative to federal awards.
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Michael S. Schreibman, C.P.A.

Michael J. Zizzi, C.P.A.
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Nicholas M. Gines, C.P.A.
Leafe COIC, LLP Members
Certified Public Accountants ) American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
A Partnership of Proféssional Corporations California Society of Certified Public Accountants
May 15, 2014

Tammy Megison

Solutions for Change, Inc
722 West California Avenue
Vista, California 92083

Dear Ms. Megison:

Enclosed is the single audit reporting package for Solutions for Change, Inc. for the year ended December 31,
2013. Following are the filing requirements for these reports.

1. Federal Audit Clearinghouse:

The single audit reporting package is required to be submitted electronically through the Federal
Audit Clearinghouse Internet Data Entry System. We have entered the Form SF-SAC and uploaded
the complete single audit package as required. The submission must still be certified by both the
auditee and the auditor. Upon receipt of the e-mail from the Federal Audit Clearinghouse we will
certify as the auditor.

You will receive an e-mail from the Federal Audit Clearinghouse with instructions as to how you
enter your signature codes online to certify the submission. The federal Audit Clearinghouse will send
e-mails to the auditee and auditor to confirm the receipt of the Form SF-SAC and single audit
reporting package. Please print the e-mail and retain for your records.

Very truly yours,

LEAF & COLE, LLP

to & Fot

Julie A. Firl

Enclosures
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Winter Quarter 2015- Funding Recommendation Worksheet (Wildlife Fund Grant Application)

Funds Available for Grantmaking: 55,407.49
* Note that the Wildlife Fund is not endowed

Applicant

Grant Type

Summary of Request

Requested

GFC Recommended
Funding

NURTURED BY
NATURE

Regular

To support their
wildlife accessibility
project, including the
installation of
boardwalks and the
purchase of a
people-moving off-
road cart to
transport visitors
with mobility
impairments to
enclosures
throughout the
Nurtured by Nature
facilities. Serves
300 San Marcos
residents annually.

$5,000

Total Grants

Requested: $5,000
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Budget Worksheet

Itemized list of expenses for this project:

4 4x4 PT df #2 and btr.8' @ $10.57 $42.28
40 2x8 PT df #2 and btr. 10' @ $17.57 $702.80
8 2x8 PT df #2 and btr. 8' @ $13.77 $110.16
34 2x8 Joist Hangers @ $1.11 $37.74
13 Pier Blocks with straps @ $5.29 $68.77
20 60 Ib. bags of ready mix @ $2.85 $57.00
1 EZ Go Express L6* $10,000.00 $10,000.00
120 Labor $25 per hour $3,000.00
Tax @ 8% $881.50
Hardware and Contingency Allowance @ 15% $2,235.00
$
$
Total budget for this PROJECT: $17,135.29

Prices taken from Home Depot Web Site
Could vary from Ecsondido Store

*hitp:/fwww.ezgo.com/personal/trail-leisure/expressi6. himl

Grant Request Amount: $5,000.60
(Mini-grants not to exceed §1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.)

Is this a challenge grant? No Could it be? Yes

Please list any other funding sources for this project.

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).

$500 (Office Depot Foundation) **Committed

$5,000 (Leo Buscaglia Foundation) **Potential
$1,000 (Contributions from Individuals) **Committed
$2,000 (Nurtured by Nature) **Committed
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD

i PO BOX 942857

/7 SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540

Entity Status Letter
Date:  8/6/2014
ESL ID: 3229268127

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter.

Entity ID: 3088555

Entity Name: NURTURED BY NATURE

1. The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.
2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

3. The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701d.

OXOKX

4. We do not have current information about the entity.

The above information does not necessarily reflect:
e The entity’s status with any other agency of the State of California, or other government agency.
e If the entity’s powers, rights, and privileges were suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or the entity
did business in California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business in California;
o The status or voidability of any contracts made in California by the entity at a time when the entity was
suspended or forfeited (R&TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5, 23305a, 23305.1).
o For entities revived under R&TC Section 23305b, any time limitations on the revivor or limitation of the
functions that can be performed by the entity.

Internet and Telephone Assistance

Website: ftb.ca.gov
Telephone: 800.852.5711 from within the United States
916.845.6500 from outside the United States
TTY/TDD: 800.822.6268 for persons with hearing or speech impairments

FTB 4263A WEB (NEW 02-2012)
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Nurtured by Nature
Proposal Narrative to the San Marcos Wildlife Fund
January, 2015

Mission Statement

Nurtured by Nature fosters hope and well-being to children with life threatening or terminal
illness, promotes a healthy life outlook and healing for children who have suffered severe
emotional trauma, and inspires a bond between humans and animals through physical
interactions with nature. These long lasting bonds, developed through individual encounters will
promote self-empowerment within the individual, as well as stimulate actions devoted to
conservation and preservation of the natural world.

Purpose

Through memorable interactions with playful wild animals, Nurtured by Nature brings healing,
education, and fun to children in need in the San Marcos area. The focus is on children and
families those suffering terminal or life-threatening illnesses. The majority of Nurtured by
Nature’s young guests are part of low-income households. Virtually every family is coping with
additional financial challenges as their loved ones undergo one medical treatment after another.
Animal Encounters and Otter Swims are available to provided free of charge to families in need.

In the course of their experience with illness, permanent disability and trauma, many children
express anguish, hopelessness, feelings of isolation, and even guilt. Nurtured by Nature programs
take the principles of ecotherapy and animal-assisted therapy one step further by combining
emotional healing with laughter and learning. Programs fully include family, extending
therapeutic benefits to them and giving the whole family a rare chance to have fun together.

Core Nurtured by Nature programs include Animal Encounters and Otter Swims. Animal
Encounters take participants up close and personal with some of the planet's most fascinating
living creatures. The animal- friendly settings allow attendees an opportunity to meet, feed, and
directly interact with kangaroos, sloths, porcupines, turtles, and more. Otter Swims bring
families together with friendly Asian small-clawed otters. Families play and swim with otters
while learning about behavior and habitat. Guests often credit Nurtured by Nature programs with
reducing stress, bringing families closer together, and inspiring a lasting love for the natural
world.

Project Title

Wildlife Accessibility Project - Disability Access Boardwalks

Project Description

A grant from the San Marcos Wildlife Fund will assist Nurtured by Nature to install a boardwalk
to accommodate wheelchairs and mobility scooters. The otter pool itself is already wheelchair-
accessible and many wheelchair-bound visitors have been thrilled to participate in water

activities and to meet these curious little mammals. The accessibility project will ensure public
access to the rest of the Nurtured by Nature facility by building a wide, even, sturdy boardwalk

1|Page
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Tax Perod:
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412273934
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NURTURED 8Y NATURE

Wailing Addrass:

15630 Rim of the Valley
Vaboy Center, CA 2082
United Sistes

Doing Business As:

Groas recoipts notgreater thaa:
850,000

Has ¥ i

b

Principal Otficers Mame and Address:
W Yates

15650 Mmoo the Valley

Valay Center. CA 2082
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Tex Periodd:
2010 {0V0 TG0 - 1200

Employer identification Mumber (Eil):
432272934
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NURTURED BY NATURE
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15830 Rim of the Wiy
Valley Center, CA 92082
United Sintes

Doing Business As:
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SEO.L00

Organtzation has terminated:
e
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1530 Rimy of the Viy
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http://apps.irs.gov/app/eos/displayEPostcard. do?dispatchMethod=displayEpostinfo&ePost... 3/14/2014
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United States
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(Gross rosipts not greater than:
50,000

Cry s
g
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Walley Cantes, 04 82082

United Stades
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nuﬁu@:ﬁbymmmmg
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ihoge filingls)

http://apps.irs.gov/app/eos/displayEPostcard.do?dispatchMethod=display Epostinfo&ePost...  3/14/2014
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NURTURED BY NATURE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR PERIOD JANUARY 1 THRU DECEMBER 31, 2014

REVENUE:
Public Support
Contributed materials

(UNAUDITED)

10’ chain link fencing

Estimated value
Donations

United Way

Sylvia Curley

Diane Clark

Janice Weems

Larry & Cindi Weaver

Total Donations

Paid Otter Swims
Lowe
Kibling
Herschman
Cassillo
Pearse
Spicer
Howell
Funk
Mott
Renner
Riley
Hinsley
Blackburn
Pearson
VanDyk
Rosso
Sullivan
daRosa
Syrek
Springle
Jones
Utnehmer
Grant
Hughes
Ho (GAD)
Brissey
Reina
Elmore (GAD)
Ho
Yost
McGunigle
Reid
McPhariin
Qrtiz
Roberts
Rooney
Angelini
Matthews
King
Cali
Sarahsr
Hanoski
Molnar
Liu
Moen
Tucker
Boyle
Tambornini

$2,000.00

349.92
40.00
25.00

200.00

250.00

$864.92
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Ross 600

Weaver 600

Euringer 600

Gunn 400

Simus 400

Cunningham 400

Lythgoe 400

Davis 400

Perez 400

O'Dell 1000

Yoder 400

Woodward 600

Oxford 400

Sheiton 600

Owens 400

Wyles 400

Byrne 400

Card 400

Kirkpatrick 400

Guy 400

Miller 600

Galovic 400

Cramer 1000

Riley 600

Ribnik 400

Rutherford 200

Soboranis 400

Phan 400

Margulis 400

Cole 400

Burns 400

Mclaughlin 400

Zirpoli 800

Koehler 400

Cancel 400

Levin 400

Altman 400

Petrielli 600

Mostella 400

Allison 400

Cutcher 400

Young 200

Yarvo 400

Way 400

Palmer 400

Carp 1000

Evans 400

Logan 400

Morris 400

Devries 400

Barna 600

Cleesattle 600

Dorn 600

Otter Swim sub-total $45,100.00

Fundraisers

San Diego Foundation giveBig Fundraiser 2,372.04

Escrip 42.52

Otter Naming Contest 3,423.00

Raiphs 108.96

Total Fundraisers $ 5,946.52

Grants

Geico 2,500.00

WalMart 2,500.00

Rincon Band 1,000.00

San Pasqual Band 500.00

Total Grants $6,500.00
TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT $60411.44
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EXPENSES:

Value of free encounters 5,400.00
Klem Insurance 1,624.06
Sterling Productions 240.00
Animal lease 33,825.00
Merchant fees fees 392.40
Vista Print (business cards, etc) 292.66
Advertising 3,441.74
Office expense 323.82
ADA upgrades 7,127.56
Grant writing & research 1,745.00
Misc. 1,087.00
TOTAL EXPENSES $55,499.24
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 4912.20
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Budget Worksheet

Provide an itemized list of expenses for this project:
(example — 72 bicycle helmets at $7.80 each including tax = $561.60)

Dell Inspiron 3000 (i3847-3846BK desktop computer ($449.99 + tax) $ 506.99
HP Office Jet All-in-One Printer ($159.99 + tax) $ 172.49
Microsoft Office Professional Office ($199.00 + tax) $ 215.00
Dragon Software (voice activated ($99.00 + tax) $ 107.00
Epson Projector (ex3220 SVGA) ($449.99 + tax) $ 506.99
2 desk chairs (49.99 each + tax) $ 108.00

$

$

$

$

$

$
Total budget for this PROJECT: $1,616.49
Grant Request Amount: $ 1,500.00
(Mini-grants not to exceed $1,500, Regular grants not to exceed $10,000.)
Is this a challenge grant? Could it be?
Please list any other funding sources for this project.
**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P).
$ 200.00  (Name of source) San Marcos Historical Society Bake Sale **c
$ (Name of source) ok
$ (Name of source) ok
$ (Name of source) o
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MINUTES
SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
GRANT FUNDING COMMITTEE
SAN MARCOS ROOM
1 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE
SAN MARCOS, CA 92069

MEETING OF THE GRANT FUNDING COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 12, 2014 - 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.
ROLL CALL

PRESENT: BOARD MEMBERS: LUKOFF, NAJERA, HALL
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: NONE

ALSO PRESENT Recording Secretary, Wendy Kaserman

OLD BUSINESS

1. GRANT AWARD WORKSHEET. Fiscal year 2014-2015
Recommendation: NOTE & FILE

NEW BUSINESS

2. REGULAR GRANT APPLICATION PROPOSALS

A.TRI-CITY HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF commented on the Board’s challenges of fulfilling all of the grant
requests with the limited amount of money there is to give. BOARD MEMBER NAJERA visited
the facility and reported on her findings. She asked Glen Newhart, Executive Director/Vice
President of Development of Tri-City Hospital Foundation to provide a summary of their plans
for the money. The program would provide a no cost screen to heavy smokers in order to
detect early stages of cancer.

BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF asked what the time frame would be for the money to be expended.
Staff confirmed that the funds need to be expended within six months or they would need to
request an extension from the Board. Glen Newhart stated they could start the program soon
and the funds would be solely for San Marcos residents. The program would not be limited to
low income residents. BOARD MEMBER NAJERA recommended funding.

B. BAYSHORE PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL
BOARD MEMBER HALL visited the school and reported on his findings. He said he met with two
of the science teachers and the science kits are very sustainable. They have 5-10 different kinds
of kits and it appears to be a very effective program. He did not have any concerns and would
recommend funding.



San Marcos Community Foundation

Grant Funding Committee Meeting Minutes
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Page 2

C. MEALS-ON-WHEELS GREATER SAN DIEGO, INC.

The Committee discussed how their program serves a lot of San Marcos residents and will
recommend partial funding.

D.SAN MARCOS HIGH SCHOOL MUSIC BOOSTERS

The Committee watched a video provided by the San Marcos High School Music Boosters which
was enjoyed by all members. The Board discussed past grants that were given to the Booster
club and how they never have enough to give to all of the organizations. The Board will
recommend partial funding.

E. AMERICAN RED CROSS SAN DIEGO/IMPERIAL COUNTIES CHAPTER

Due to limited resources available for grant making and the other grant requests received, the
committee discussed recommending to the Board not funding this grant request.

BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF asked for a motion to approve the following Regular Grant
recommendation to the Board of the San Marcos Community Foundation: $4,500.00 to the Tri-
City Hospital Foundation; $4,500.00 to Bayshore Preparatory Charter School; $2,000.00 to
Meals-On-Wheels Greater San Diego, Inc.; and $1,000.00 to the San Marcos High School Music
Boosters. BOARD MEMBER HALL made the motion to approve the regular grant funding
recommendation. BOARD MEMBER NAJERA seconded the motion. Motion passed by

unanimous voice vote.

AYES: LUKOFF, HALL, NAJERA
NOES: NONE
ABSTENTION: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTIONED BY BOARD MEMBER NAJERA AND SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER HALL TO APPROVE THE

CONSENT CALENDAR. MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE.

AYES: LUKOFF, NAJERA, HALL
NOES: NONE
ABSTENTION: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

3. WAIVER OF TEXT — Waived

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — Approved - SMCF Grant Funding Committee Meeting minutes of
October 8, 2014.

5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - No members of the public requested to speak.
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ITEMS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER

6. NEXT MEETING DATE — The next meeting of the SMCF Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday,
November 18, 2014.

The next Grant Funding Committee meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 14, 2015.

7. MISCELLANEOUS

8. ADJOURNMENT

MOTIONED BY BOARD MEMBER HALL AND SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER NAJERA TO
ADJOURN THE MEETING. MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE.

Meeting adjourned at 6:52 PM.

Colleen Lukoff, Board President

ATTEST:

Wendy Kaserman, Recording Secretary
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